Northern Inyo Hospital

July 15 2015 Regular Meeting

July 15 2015 Regular Meeting - July 15 2015 Regular Meetint

Agenda, July 15 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda, July 15 2015 Regular MEetiNg .......uoveiiiiiii e 2
Consent Agenda

Minutes, 6-17-15 Regular MEeLING ......cceuuiiiiie e eeeanees 5

Minutes, June 30 2015 Special MEEtING ......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 10

Financial and Statistical Reports for May 2015 ..........ccooieiiiiiiii e, 11

Minutes, July 2 2015 Special MEEetING .....ccveuuiieiiee e e 21
CEO Report

Celtic Leasing TermMiNation ........cooeiiuiiiiiieee e e e s 22

Chief of Staff Report
Chief of Staff Report, 7/15/15 Regular Meeting ........covvvuriiiiiiiieiiiiiiiie e 23

Performance Excellence Report
Performance EXCellenCe RePOIt.. ... 69

Purchase of Nuclear Medicine Radiopharmacy
Purchase of Nuclear Medicine Radiopharmacy.......ccccccoeeiiiiiiiiiiin e, 77

Inyo County First 5 Grant
INYO COUNLY FIrSt 5 Grant.. ... oo cieeiie e e e e e e e e aaa e 87

2015/2016 Fiscal Year Budget
2015/2016 Fiscal Year BUAQEL .....cooouiiiiiiiiiieeeeeieii et 107

Milliman Actuarial Valuation as of 1/1/15
Milliman Actuarial Valuation At 1/0 LS. ...t e e eeen 110

Personnel Policy - Leaves of Absence, Leave Donation
Personnel Policy: Leaves of Absence, Leave Donation .........cccceeeeveeviieeeeennnnnnn. 132

Personnel Policy: Benefits - Tuition Reimbursement
Personnel Policy: Benefits - Tuition Reimbursement............ccccooeeeiiiiiiicniennnnn, 134

Personnel Policy: Benefits - Paid Sick Leave
Personnel Policy: Benefits - Paid Sick Leave........ccccoooveviiiiiiciiicie e, 136


http://www.tcpdf.org




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
[ Title: Recall: Drugs
Scope: Departmental Department: Pharmacy
Source: Director of Pharmacy Effective Date: 06/15

5. Ifthe recalled drug is stored in any automated unit, the technician will notify the pharmacist and
will remove any recalled inventory from the unit.

6. All other storage units including Surgery, PACU, Outpatient Services, Radiology Areas shall be
checked by direct viewing of the supply by the pharmacist on duty or by a person designated by
the pharmacist on duty.

7. A pharmacy technician will go to the Rural Health Clinic (RHC) and will check the sample log to
determine if any of the recalled drug is in the sample stock of the RHC.

8. If'the sample stock includes any of the recalled drugs, the pharmacy technician will remove the
drug, signing it out of the sample log as recalled and returned to pharmacy.

9. 1If the sample stock included any of the recalled drug, the pharmacy technician will inform the
Nurse Manager of the RHC of the recall and the Nurse Manager will see to it that any patient, to
whom a recalled sample was dispensed, is immediately telephoned and informed not to take any
more of the medication and to return the remainder of the medication to the RHC.

10. Any recalled medication returned to the RHC will be turned over to the pharmacy for return to
the manufacturer.

11. All recalled medication will be returned to the manufacturer according to the instructions of the
recall documents.

12. Patient’s on the list who-received the recalled medication will be sent a letter informing them of

the fact. A copy will be sent to the primary care physician on the computer patient profile and/or
mail. When appropriate prescribers are provided with additional recall information, anticipated
clinical problems/events, information that may be provided to the patient and the description of
the proper procedure to file an adverse event form if one occurs as a result of a product quality
defect.

Class II1 recalls:

1.

Upon receipt of a Class III recall the pharmacist will read the recall document to determine if
there is any danger to patients.

If the pharmacist determines that there is a danger to patients from the recalled drug, the Class I
and 11 procedure will be followed.

If the pharmacist determines that there is no danger to patients, pharmacy and automated
dispensing unit inventories will be examined to determine if there are any recalled drug lots
therein.

If there are recalled drug lots in the examined inventories, the pharmacist will have them removed
and quarantined for return to the manufacturer in accordance with the manufacturers’
instructions.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Recall: Drugs

Scope: Departmental Department: Pharmacy

Source: Director of Pharmacy Effective Date: 06/15

Committee Approval Date

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee 6/18/2015

Medical Executive Committee

Board of Directors

Responsibility for review and maintenance: Director of Pharmacy
Index Listings:

Initiated: 4/03

Revised/Reviewed: 9/04, 10/05, 5/08, 8/12, 11/14, 4/8/15, 6/18/2015

References
California State Board of Pharmacy
www.[da.gov; Regulatory Procedures Manuul Oclober 201 3, Chapter 7, Recall procedures.




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
o - POLICY AND PROCEDURE
' Title: DI Mammography Infection Control Policy

Scope: Departmental Manual: Breast Imaging, Diagnostic Imaging
Source: Director of Diagnostic Imaging Effective Date: 4/20/2015

PURPOSE:
To prevent and control the spread of infection to employees, patients, and visitors within the mammography
department by properly cleaning the equipment.

POLICY:

Northern Inyo Hospital has established and complies with a system specifying procedures to be followed by
the facility for cleaning and disinfecting mammography equipment after contact with blood or other
potentially infectious materials. This system specifies the methods for documenting facility compliance with
the infection control procedures established. The materials used to disinfect mammography equipment are
those specified by the equipment manufacturer and approved by the infection control department.

PROCEDURE:
1. Mammography rooms are to be cleaned between patients.
2. All surfaces in contact with patient are to be wiped clean:with a facility and x-ray unit manufacturer
approved disinfectant at the end of each examination. See below:

1. Wipe the Bucky, paddle, and other components with germicidal disposable cloth or a clean
cloth with an approved disinfectant between each patient following the manufacture
instructions printed on the label. (Sample'documents reproduced on the following pages,
labeled A, B and highlighted. _

2. When disinfecting for blood and body fluids, all blood and body fluids must be thoroughly
cleaned from the surface and objects before disinfection. Use
germicidal/bactericidal/fungicidal/virucidal disposable disinfectant wipe and completely wet
the surface to be cleaned following the manufacture instructions printed on the label. (Sample
documents reproduced on the following pages, labeled B and highlighted)

3. All staff should perform hand hygicne before and after contact with patients and after cleaning
equipment,

4. All linens are for single patient use only. Following use, they are to be deposited in appropriate linen
bag for transport to laundry.

5. Any spills or drips on floors or equipment must be washed with a facility and manufacturer approved
disinfectant following the manufacturer instructions.

Isolation Patients:

1. Isolation patients are scheduled in such a manner as to cause the least amount of exposure to other
patients.
2. The staff will adhere to the established isolation precautions as described in the infection control

manual.
3. In case blood or bodily fluids come in contact with machine it will be documented on the Infection

Control Log.

REFERENCES:
1. MQSA Federal Register 1 Vol. 62,N0.208; page 55991
2. OSHA Blood Borne Pathogens Standard (29 CFR 1910.1030)



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: DI Mammography Infection Control Policy
Scope: Departmental Manual: Breast Imaging, Diagnostic Imaging

Source: Director of Diagnostic Imaging Effective Date: 4/20/2015

CROSS REFERENCE P&P:

Approval Date

Radiology Services Committee 5/19/2Q15

Infection Control Committee 6/30/2015

Medical Executive Committee

Administration

Board of Directors

Developed:

Reviewed: DDI 4/20/2015 ) { 7 _
Revised: 4/19/2015 %/ )
Supercedes: Infection Control Policy per MQSA Cleaning ofpbgc;;y Tlu;ds

':I i

Index Listings: ﬂ ; J




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Admission of a Patient with a Communicable Disease
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Clinical Practice Manual, CPM - Infection
Control- Patient Care (ICP)
Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
Infection Control Employee Wellness
POLICY:
1. Regulations for Communicable Diseases admissions are extracted from "Communicable Disease

Control Procedure of the County of Inyo California”, and are consistent with state regulations.

2 Patients with the following diagnosed or suspected diseases shall not be admitted to or treated at
IH:
a. Ebola Virus, Lassa Fever and all other hemorrhagic illnesses
g Patients with the following diagnosed or suspected disease shall be admitted or treated to these
rooms :

a. ED Room 2
b. ICU Room 1
c. MS Room 5

Suspected and or/confirmed:

a. Chicken Pox
b. Relapsing Fever (Louse-borng)
c. SARS
d. Plague
e. Botulism
f. Mumps (with complications)
g Pertussis (if severe and under three [3] years of age)
h. Poliomyelitis
i Rabies i
je Rubéola (measles, with complications)
k. Tetanus
15 Typhoid Fever
4, Any patient with communicable discase listed as a Reportable Disease may remain in the
facility.
e LException: Designated as stated above under #2.
e State regulations are met at this facility for adequate isolation
5. Patients who are asymptomatic carriers of salmonella, typhoid, or shigella, may NOT be

discharged to a skilled nursing or intermediate care facility, unless prior written approval has
been obtained from the attending physician,



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Admission of a Patient with a Communicable Disease

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Clinical Practice Manual, CPM - Infection
Control- Patient Care (ICP)

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
Infection Control Employee Wellness

REFERENCES:

1. CDC (2014) Healthcare Workers Identify Isolate Inform: ED Evaluation and Management for
Patients Who Present with Possible Ebola Virus Disease. .
http://www.cde.gov/vhi/ebola/hep/ed- m.mmzemcm—pallent-nosmble cbol'l hlml

AT ,-.'-

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: P N
1. Triage of Patients suspected of Ebola i "
a. NIH Ebola Algorithm (Attached to above P&P auc_l also localcd on NTH Inl ranct Forms.

Departmental, Emergency Department section)

Approval Date ““"—'?i‘.k

Communicable Disease Task Force <Al 5/2015

Infection Control Committee

MEC

Board of Directors

Developed: 3/2015
Reviewed:
Revised:




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Adult Immunization in the Health Care Worker

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Employee Health

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
Infection Control Employee Wellness

It is a priority for Northern Inyo Hospital to provide as safe an environment as possible for both employees
and the patients they serve. This includes prevention of disease transmission between health care workers
(HCWs) and patients, particularly those diseases that are preventable by immunization.

PURPOSE:

L.

‘-hb.)!\)

To explain Northern Inyo Hospital’s Immunization Program.

HCWs are at risk of acquiring several vaccine-preventable diseases with potentially devastating
consequences.

HCWs also serve as vectors for transmitting disease to other staff members and patients. Outbreaks
of vaccine-preventable diseases have been well documented in medical institutions. Immunizing
[ICWs against vaccine-preventable discases can prevent these outbreaks.

To define who is included in NIH’s Immunization Program.

To define which immunizations are offered by Northern Inyo Hospital.

To identify the resource(s) for all decisions (unless otherwise stated) for'the immunization program.

POLICY:

1.

The employee health nurse, supervised by the Medical Director. or designee, administers the

immunization program. Questions related to vaccinations and immunization status are best addressed

to the employee health nurse. However, in most cases the ER nursing staff is also able to help, and

they are available 24 hours a day. If the ER is busy:with a heavy patient load, then it may be

necessary to callior return at a quieter time.

Participants inthe immunization program include:

All NIH employees.

Physicians

Independent contractors.

Travel staff.

Volunteers.

Hospice staff.

Student workers (with parental permission for those under age 18)

The health status of.all participants is'assessed for:

General health'status.

Vaccination history.

Allergy history.

Documentation of infectious diseases.

Documentation of past immunizations.

Documentation of disease titers.

The curremly available vaccines are:

Measles, mumps, rubella (MMR).

Varicella- If age 50 or less there should be evidence of 2 chickenpox vaccinations or a

positive titer.

c. Hepatitis B- If at risk for contact with blood, blood products, or bodily secretions (eligibility
by department is in the Bloodborne Standard policy).

©mo a0 o

mo e o

o



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Adult Immunization in the Health Care Worker

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Employee Health
Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:

Infection Control Employee Wellness

5

d. Tetanus, diphtheria, pertussis (Tdap).

e. Tetanus/diphtheria (Td), if staff member has contraindication to Tdap.

f. Influenza- Offered yearly.

g. Pneumococcal- For employces >65 or at risk because of chronic health problems; In addition,
it is encouraged for those employees 19 years through 64 who smoke or have asthma.

h. Meningococcal- For laboratory technicians whose work in microbiology puts them at a higher

risk. i | e
i. Zoster (Shingles)- If you are over 50, regardless of previous c'hfi(;kenpox vaccine status, then
the zoster is recommended. :

All aspects of the immunization program will follow the CDC guidelines in the current edition of
Epidemiology and Prevention of Vaccine-Preventable Diseases. . T
Published by the Department of Health and Human Services R

Centers For Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)...

This resource is published yearly so all recommendations will stay current.

6. Interim recommendations will be based on the CDC recommendations and the American Committee
on Immunization Practices (ACIP). Y Fa. . S
The CDC website, www.cde.gov., reflects any interim recommendations.

A - f SR
PROCEDURE: H S v N J

1. All partici p’é%f}s\ﬁlll}bc notified of available vaccinations and determination will be made if a specific
vaceination is approptiate, based on individual history.

2. The vaccinations are primarily given by the Employee Health RN and also in the ER, as staffing and
time permits, prp_,y_iﬂi‘fi"g'z_i hour availability."

3. The vaccines ate all free of harge, as are any necessary titers done before or after the vaccinations.

4. When participants receive noticelof a vaccination being due or a question related to vaccination
status, it is aﬁfi‘_i_",gciated if there is'a prompt response. It should be considered a priority and repeated
requests should not have to be necessary.

5. It is preferred thatiaccinations not be delayed or refused. However, all employees have a right to
refuse any vaccination:after being informed of risks and benefits. There is a vaccination declination
that needs to be sngn‘c:dTa{ﬁ}%‘rfﬂ}'é;émployee is fully informed.

6. Documentation is completed by the employee health nurse and is kept in the employee health files
and database. The employee health nurse is responsible for the maintenance of these reco rds.

7. Copies of health records are available from the employee health nurse.

8. Standing orders for immunizations to be obtained on an annual basis for the Employee Health

immunization program.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

1.

Employees who request immunizations not covered by the standing orders and guidelines of the
Employee Health Medical Director will be referred to their private provider.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Adult Inmunization in the Health Care Worker

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual; Employee Health

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
Infection Control Employee Wellness

2.

3

The immunization program follows NIH guidelines approved by the Infection Control Committee,
based on the CDC Guidelines and ACIP.
Age: Adults only. Employees < 18 years of age will need parental approval.

DOCUMENTATION:
All documentation relating to vaccinations and or titers will be kept in the Employee Health files and
database.

care provider.
The Employee Health Nurse or designee is responsible for maintenance of immunization records.

REFERENCES:

1.

Epidemiology and Prevention of Vaccine-Preventable Diseases, current edition
Published by the Department of Health and Human Services.
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

2. United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Website: www.cdc.gov
3. American Committee on Immunization Practices: www,immunize.org/acip
4. Marshall, G. (2012). The Vaccing Handbook: A Practical Guide for Clinicians.
University of Louisyille School of Medicine: Professional Communications, Inc.
5. Immunization Action Coalition: www.immunize.org/catg.d/p2017.pdf
CROSS REFERENCE P&P:

1. Aerosolized Transmissible Disease Standard
2. Influenza Policy @ '

Committee Approval - Date
Infection Control Committee 6/30/15
MEC

Board

Developed: 09/2007 la
Reviewed: 08/2011 la; 5/15 NH
Revised: 03/2014 la; 6/15 NH
Supercedes:



Healthcare Personnel Vaccination Recommendations

VACCINES AND RECOMMENDATIONS IN BRIEF

Hepatitis B - If previously unvaccinated, give 3-dose series (dose #1 now, #2 in 1 month,
#3 approximately 5 months after #2). Give intramuscularly (IM). For HCP who
perform tasks that may involve exposure to blood or body fluids, obtain anti-HBs
serologic testing 1-2 months after dose #3.

Influenza — Give 1 dose of influenza vaccine annually. Inactivated injectable vaccine is
given IM, except when using the intradermal influenza vaccine. Live attenuated
influenza vaccine (LAIV) is given intranasally.

MMR = For healthcare personnel (HCP) born in 1957 or later without serologic evidence
of immunity or prior vaccination, give 2 doses of MMR, 4 weeks apart. For HCP
born prior to 1957, see below. Give subcutaneously (SC).

Varicella (chickenpox) — For HCP who have no serologic proof of immunity, prior
vaccination, or diagnosis or vetification of a history of varicella or herpes zoster
(shingles) by a healthcare provider, give 2 doses of varicella vaccine, 4 weeks apart.

Give SC.

Tetanus, diphtheria, pertussis - Give 1 dose of Tdap as soon as feasible to all HCP
who have not received Tdap previously and to pregnant HCP with each pregnancy
(see below). Give Td boosters every 10 years thereafter. Give IM.

Meningococcal - Give 1 dose to microbiologists who are routinely exposed to isolates
of Neisseria meningitidis and boost every 5 years if risk continues, Give MCV4 IM;

if necessary to use MPSV4, give 5C.

Hepatitls A, typhold, and polio vaccines are not routinely recommended for HCP who may have on-the-job exposure to fecal material.

Hepatitis B

Unvaccinated healthcare personnel (HCP)
and/or those who cannot document previous
vaccination should recelve a 3-dose serles of
hepatitis B vaceine at 0,1, and 6 months, HCP
who perform tasks that may involve exposure
to bload or body fluids should be tested for
hepatitis B surface antibody (anti-HBs) 1-2
months after dose #3 to document immunity.

® |f anti-HBs is at least 10 mIU/mL (positive),
the vaccinee is immune. No further serologic
testing or vacclnatlon is recommended.

® If anti-HBs is less than 10 mIU/mL (negative),
the vaccinee is not protected from hepatitis B
virus (HBV) Infection, and should receive 3
additional doses of HepB vaccine on the rou-
tine schedule, followed by antl-HBs testing
1-2 months later. A vaccinee whose anti-HBs
remains less than 10 mIU/mL after 6 doses
is considered a “non-responder.”

For non-responders: HCP who are non-responders
should be considered susceptible to HBV and
should be counseled regarding precautions to
prevent HBV infection and the need to obtain
HBIG prophylaxis for any known or probable
parenteral exposure to hepatitis B surface antigen
(HBsAg)-positive blood or blood with unknown
HBsAg status. It Is also possible that non-
responders are people who are HBsAg positive.
HBsAg testing is recommended. HCP found

to be HBsAg positive should be counseled and
medically evaluated.

For HCP with documentation of a complete
3-dose HepB vaccine series but no documenta-
tion of anti-HBs of at least 10 mIU/mL (e.g.,
those vaccinated in childhood): HCP who are at
risk for occupational blood or body fluid expo-
sure might undergo anti-HBs testing upon hire ar
matriculation. See references 2 and 3 for details.

Influenza

All HCP, including physicians, nurses, paramedics,
emergency medical technicians, employees

of nursing homes and chronic care facilities,
students in these professions, and volunteers,
should receive annual vaccination against influ-
enza, Live attenuated influenza vaccine (LAIV)
may be given only to non-pregnant healthy HCP
age 49 years and younger. Inactivated injectable
influenza vaccine (I1V) is preferred over LAIV
for HCP who are in close contact with severely
immunosuppressed patients (e.g., stem cell
transplant recipients) when they require protec-
tive Isolation.

Measles, Mumps, Rubella (MMR)

HCP who work in medical facilities should be
immune to measles, mumps, and rubeila.

W HCP born in 1957 or later can be considered
immune to measles, mumps, or rubella only
if they have documentation of (a) laboratory
confirmation of disease or immunity or
(b) appropriate vaccination against measles,
mumps, and rubella (i.e., 2 doses of live
measles and mumps vaccines given on or after

the first birthday and separated by 28 days or
more, and at least 1 dose of live rubella
vaccine). HCP with 2 documented doses of
MMR are not recommended to be serologically
tested for immunity; but if they are tested and
results are negative or equivocal for measles,
mumps, and/or rubella, these HCP should be
considered to have presumptive evidence of
immunity to measles, mumps, and/or rubella
and are not in need of additional MMR doses,

Although birth before 1957 generally is con-
sidered acceptable evidence of measles,
mumps, and rubella immunity, 2 doses of MMR
vaccine should be considered for unvaccl-
nated HCP born before 1957 who do not have
laboratory evidence of disease or immunity to
measles and/or mumps. One dose of MMR
vaccine should be considered for HCP with no
laboratory evidence of disease or immunity
to rubella. For these same HCP who do not
have evidence of immunity, 2 doses of MMR
vaccine are recommended during an outbreak
of measles or mumps and 1 dose during an
outbreak of rubella,

Varicella

It is recommended that all HCP be immune to
varicella, Evidence of immunity in HCP includes
documentation of 2 doses of varicella vaccine
given at least 28 days apart, laboratory evidence
of immunity, laboratory confirmation of disease,
or diagnosis or verification of a history of vari-
cella or herpes zoster (shingles) by a healthcare
provider.

Tetanus/Diphtheria/Pertussis (Td/Tdap)

All HCPs who have not or are unsure if they have
previously received a dose of Tdap should
receive a dose of Tdap as soon as feasible, with-
out regard to the Interval since the previous dose
of Td. Pregnant HCP should be revaccinated
during each pregnancy. All HCPs should then
receive Td boosters every 10 years thereafter,

Meningococcal

Vaccination with MCV4 is recornmended for
microbiologists who are routinely exposed to
isolates of N. meningitidis.

REFERENCES

1 CDC, Immunization of Health-Care Personnel: Recom-
mendatlons of the Advisory Committee on Immunization
Practices (ACIP), MMWR, 2011; 60(RR-7).

CDC. CDC Guidance for Evaluating Health-Care Personnel
far Hepatitls B Virus Protection and for Administering
Postexposure Management, MMWR, 2013; 62(10):1-19.
IAC. Pre-exposure Management for Healthcare Persannel
with a Documented Hepatitls B Vaccine Series Who Have
Not Had Post-vaccination Serologic Testing, Accessed at
www.immunize org/catg.d/p2108,pdf,

N

w

For additional specific ACIP recommendations, vislt CDC's
website at www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recsfindex.
html or visit IAC's website at www.immunlze.org/acip.

Technical content reviewed by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

IMMUNIZATION ACTION COALITION  Saint Paul, Minnesota » 651-647-9009 - www.immunize.org » www.vaccineinformation.org
www.immunize.org/catg.d/p2017.pdf « ltem #P2017 (3/15)



1

Figure 5. Immunization Schedule—Adults 19 Years and Older-United States, 2015.

Note: Theta recommandatlons must hia read with the fontnoles that follow
contalning humber of doses, Intervals batween doses, and other Important infermatlan.

Figure 1. Recommended adult Immunization schedule, by vaccine and age group’

VACEINE v AGEGROUP » Watyews | naeyens | mavyen | spsoyenrs | obtyen | 265 yrans
Tillieisa! BT T AT -
Tetaius, dightharta, petusis (T/Tap) !
Vatlcella™
Hyrman papilicrmaiis [1PY) Female®
Tuman papilomavirus (HEV) Mate™
Jagler*
Ml es, ﬁmmpi,n;ll.rllh (MR = o or2 doses
Pnensearea] 13-valent conjugate (PLY13) ime dase |
Fuenmororca plyarcharide (FPEVL4 1 dose
Mrnfngotiees™
Hepatitis A
Hepatilly 82"
Hoentophis bifivevoe pe b (A
Lo bip i Maselin Jefm y Conmbbiitlun Mrogram
I::] ;.:::gmf;m': nl?ai:':c:n‘&{ m f p:‘:;l ;IL ;vllr:r.?:: iTim"J;ﬁTiﬂff.ﬁfﬁf!\'ﬁiﬂmﬁﬂ'aﬁ‘,?:‘il?é Alvesse Evenl Rejsorihiyg Syshein (VAERSY Aesoiting loirns und struclions on Bling o VAERS
el A DA o R e S
ﬂ'wﬂmﬂ"ﬂ«vf'ﬂ“" ) W\.“nﬂhlﬂmﬂ teinethn i sehiedule, catent ol vt 0L o1 egneaiadieatialis fin vaga sratiish b sl vl ut
= Recommended i some atiser tick i st g 13 IV Ds € PN T gt Co it L 00/ CLIRNTE TR 286261 I Faslishy anse Apseeioy, A3 L0 oy ?mlml\i"m'\ﬁ"""'ﬂ!r
4 Iactot Iy pivicat le.g, on ilte bals of Frisay, exebuding lidags,

medleal, seupeliana, Mestyle,orotier  y1y0 of trade names and camperelil seirens s for fdentificatinn anly st dues st lmply e dessement by the WS Gepprnsat af 1t o Huimen Seces

In
) ) Thn necomme ldstlons e dul d Ly Uiz CEnter v for Dl tral and f Loy LD Adsary Gominltiee on b than Practl
[:::] Sl Mt.;"!t::ﬂn .wfaﬁ;\&"ﬂ"%f ﬁn-ﬁ}iﬂ .qr:'{:mz].|hlN:t::r:xnla;i:nbﬁmmlxutl\%ﬁ%ﬁﬁlé:&!ﬂInge‘:['{:buuuhh;ftﬂd?;?nﬁum{s'l?u&%;mﬂ
e af Hurse Mididvey |
Flgure 2, Vaccines that might be Indicated for adults based on medical and other indications'
Inimuno- iV infestlon
canpromlilig i+ T lymphoeyte Hearvdlsgase, | Asplonia (Inchuding
wandiflon ot 41 Menwha | Kidneytallure, chianle alectlve splanactony
(excluding human andestagerenal | fung dlsease, and penitynt Chronle
) ) _ | immunodefideney | <200 | =200 mnn.malplnr chiople | complement component | liver lealuicare:
YALCINE ¥ IcATION & | P | vt [V e callifl allﬂ | ol alcoliolisin deficlencled " disense | Dlabetes | persanne|
Inluenn™ ' 1dos wally 1.#0'!!]1\_?_’:"' ally [ ys,

Telonus, dighlbreria, pertissis [TafTdap)™

Varleella'® h dqiit ] U
[t grapliioniasing (V) Tonsale™ ~ 3dosesthroughas .ﬂ S o )
e vgh age 26 yrs 4 !

Humal) papiomiavins GHEV) Male'® ! Hﬂthh‘apﬁll ugtl'l ws
It Contraindic | AT 1| 5811 N  1dose
Measles, tnumpy, rubetla (MMR) Lommmdlm NN | ST [ A o _luf.zduu

Priesmnenceal 13 valet confete (PCV 3)
Piicammaroccal polyiaccharde (PRS2

Menhigocoal™
Hepatitfs A1
Hepatitis 84
Haernmhilus bufanrae Vype s Ly s WO )
Cabaitd bi e Vosiivia R rnnﬂmmln'lhlna ar whnmuuhnaﬂ nhmmumdu.homﬁ Recomimended 1 suime ol (i Tty N ieeommenililut
g Somp e, [ 0 dwﬂnmmga}un no evlda nu"gfwmunm:m--.wm m s preen) fe g miluhnltdanﬂhul, [____j
et tecominelided tegardies of pilor eplyodie of roset «;ubhﬂonnf Ifestyle, or oty Nudloslions)
{ Y huandtnch ,;'h:;‘ “ m ,.....‘ " ljmm A :.‘ ; ‘*.',l e S p—
\l mml L s AR . [ d] bt W i fie
M‘B«p:;mmlal ::T ‘ﬁ" 'I'P'. -‘mmm- "".' o el ipned mweey deies. | . I“ 1 sl nwlnmmrqy‘mﬂmr‘;ﬂsﬂ
Healih and Humpn 51 vites . ey ol it i EOninalic e | ot detat b v i
Cointada e [Haesne. mumnhwmrmw AL L ek and pdete stateinents fiom tho Advivary G
Eemiral arad Preventhe '::lli#mmmg:m” ﬂ:muh. qu‘m’l;.l_-ui:ur i r-{fh].d('lﬂr‘llﬂ lhl'dmdtmmmuitmwmml il by ¥

Rx for Prevention | A County Depactment of Public Health - April-May 2015



Figure 6. Footnotes—Immunization Schedule for Adults 19 Years and Older-United States, 2015.

1. Additional Informatlon

« Addillonal guldance for the use af Ihe vaceines dascribed in this supplement is available al
wiva.cdu govlvaccines/eplacip-recsindex himl.

+ Information on vaccinalion recommendalions when vaccination slalus is unknown and
other general immunization information can be found in the General Recommendations on
Immunization al wawcde.govimmiripresiewhniattilmirGOD2at.him.

« Information on ravel vaccine requirements and recommendalions (e.g., for hepalilis A and B,
meningacoccal, and cther vaccines) is avallable st wwwae.cde.geviiraveliestinalionsist.

+ Addilional informalion and resources regarding vaccination of pregnanl women can be found al
www.coc govivaceinagladultsivec-vac/preguanl bml.

2, Influenza vaccinatlon

« Annual vacéinalion against Influenza is recominended for all persons aged 6 monihs or older.

+ Prgons aged 6 monihs or older, Including pregnant women and petsons wilh hives-only allergy
10 0ggs con recalve the inaclivaled Infivenza vacdne (IIV). An ige-apptopriale IV lormulation
should be used,

+ Adults aged 18 years or elifer con recalve the recombinant Influenza vaccine (RIV) (FluBlok).
RIV does ol canlain any egg protein and can be given lo ageappropriale porsons with egg
allergy of any severily.

« Healihy, nonpregnani persans ugad 2 to 49 years withoul high-risk medical condillons can
soculve elibier ntranasally adminislored live, sllenualed influenzit vaccine (L AIV) (Flikdist) or
v,

« Hoalth care parsonnid who cale for severely immunocompromised persons Who require care
in o prolocted environment should recelve IV or RIV; health care perconnel who receive
LAV shoultl svnld providing cara for savarely imnunosuppressed porsons for 7 days afler
vaccinalion,

« The intramuscularly or intradermally administered [V are opfions for adults aged 18 through 64
years.

» Adults agad G5 years or older can recelve the siandard-dose HV or lhe highdose IIV (Fluzane
High-Dose).

+ Alis! of currently available influenza vaccines can be found at

www.cde.goviluiprolect/vaccine/vaccines.nim.

3. Telanus, dipkitharta, and acellular pertussls (Td/Tdap) vaccination

« Adminlster 1 dose of Tdap vaceine lo pragnant wamen during each preanarcy (preferably
durlng 27 lo 38 waeks' gaslation) regardless of Inlerval since prlor Td or Tdap vaccination,

« Pegsans aged 11 years or oldnr who have nol recaived Tdap vantine of for whom vaceino stalus
Is unknown should raceivee a dose of Tdap (ollowed by letanus and diphiheria loxolds (Td)
booster doses ovary 10 years theresfier: Tdap can be adminlstersd ragardless of Intervel since
{he most recanl intanys or diptiheria-loxold conlalning vaccine.

«Addults with an unknown of Incomplete hisiory of complaling a 3-dose primary vageinalion seriss
wilh Td-containing vaccines should begln or complete a primary vaceinafion serles including a
Tdap dose,

« For unvaceinated adulls, sdminister the first 2 doses at least 4 weeks apart and the thlrd dose 6

lo 12months sfter the second,

« For incomplelefy vazelnated (i.¢., less than 3 doses) adulls, administer remaining doses.

- Refer lo Ihe ACIP stalement for recommendalions for administering Td/Tdap as praphylaxis in
wound managemen (see foatnote 1).

4, Varicella vaccination

* All adults wdihout evldanca of immunily to varlcella (as defined below) should receive 2 doses of
single-aniigen varicella vaccine or a second dose it hey have raceived only 1 doss,

«Vacoination shoiild ke emphosized for (hosa who have cloge conlacl valh parsons al high
rhsk for severe disease (0., heallh care porsonnel dnd farmily contaols of porsons with
Immunocompromising condillans) or ar # Wigh risk for expasure ot ransmission fe0.,
teachers; child care employees; tesidents and stall membirs of nstiulional selfings, inchiding
corractional nslittions; college studants, milltary personnel, adolescants and adufls living In
households with children; nonpragnant wamen of childbearing sge; and inlemalional lravelars),

« Prognant women should b assossed (o evidence of vadealls Immunity, Women who do nal
have evidence of immunity should recaivie the first dose of varlcetla vaceine upon completion or
{ermination of pragnanty and bofore discharge from (he heallh eare faclily. The second dose
should be admhnlsiered 4 1o 8 weeks alter the fire! dose.

« Evidence of immunity lo varicella in adulls includes any of lhe loliowing:
— docurmentalion of 2.doses of varicella vaccine at least 4 weeks aparl;
— U.8:-born belore 1980, excepl health care persnnnel and pregnant women;
— hislory of varicella based on diagnosis or verification ot varicella disease by 2 heallh care

provider;
— hislory of herpes zesler based on diagnosis or verificalion of herpes 2oster disease by a health
care provider; ar

— laboralory evidence of Immunily or labaralory confirmalion of disease.

S. Human paplllomavirus (HPV) vaccination

+ Two vacclnes dre licensid for use In females, bivalenl HPV vacclne (HPV2) and quadrivalen)
1HPY vaccine (HPV4), and one HPV vaccine for use in males (HPVA).

« For lemales, either HPVA4 or HPVZ is recommended in a 3-dose serles for rouling vaceinallon at
age 11 or 12 years and for (hose aged 13 (hrough 26 years, If nol previpusly vacoinated.

« For males, HPV4 is recommented (n a 3-dose series for routine vacclnatlon al age 11 or 12
years and for Ihose aged 13 (hrough 21 years, If nal previously vaceinaled. Males aged 22

through 26 years may be vaccinaled.

+ HPV4 Is recommended for men who have sex with men Lirough age 26 yzars for (hose wha did
nol el any ur all doses when they were younger,

+Vacelnation Is recommended for immunocampramised persons (including ihose villh HIV
Tnfection) thraugh sge 26 years for hose who did not gel any or all doges whon Lhey were
younger,

v A complate sories for aillor HPV4 of HPVZ2 canglsls of 3 doses, The second dose should be
administered 4 to  weeks (minimum interval of 4 weeks) afler 1he fiest daso; the Wil dose
should ba adminislered 24 wacks allar he firs| dosa and 16 yoeks alter the second dose
{inintmuer Interval of al laast 12 weeks).

« HPV vaccines are nol recommended for use In pregnani women. Hovever, pregoancy tesling
if, not neaded befora vactinallon, If a womin is found [ ba pregnant aller initiating the
vaceination serfas. no Intervention s needed; the remaindat of he 3-dose serdes should be
delayad until completion of lermination of pregnancy.

6. Zoster vacclnation

+ Asingle dose ol zoster vaccine is tecommandad for adulis aged 60 yoars or ulder regardless
ofwhother they report a pior eplsode of herpes zoster. Alffiough the vaceine fs licensedl tiy the
U8, Food and Deug Administralion for use amang 8nd can be administered o persons nged
50 years or older, ACIP recommends Ihal vaccinalion begin al age 60 years.

+ Pursons aged 60 years or older with chronic medical tendillans may ba vacenated unless heir
vondlfion canslilules a contiaindicution, such as pregnancy or severe Immunodeliciency,

7. Measles, mumps, rubella (MMR) vaccination

+ Adults born before 1957 are penorally conshtered immuno lo messhes and mumps. Al adulls
bom |7 1857 or [ater should have documentalinn of 1 or mare doses nf MMR vaceing unless
thoy liive a medical contralndleation lo ltig vazcing of labotatory evidence of immunily Lo
cacli of lhethioe digenses, Documentalion of providor-diagnosed disoase Is nol congidered
acceplable evidence of immunily lor measles, mumgs, or rubella,

Measles component:

+ Aroiiline second dose ol MMR vacting, administered e miimum of 28 days afler llie firs(
dose, Is recommended for adulls who:

— are studenls in posleecondary educalional Inslitutions,

— work In a healln care aclllty, or

— plan lo lravel Internallonally.

+Petsans who recalved Inaclivated (Klled) measies vaccine o measles vattine of unknown
type durlng 1963~1067 should ba revacchalud with 2 doses of MMR vaccine.

Mumps component:

» Aroutine secand dose of MMR vacoine, admirisiered a minimum of 28 days afler e firs|
dose; s recommended for adulls who;

— are sludens [n a postsecondary educational Inslilulion,

— workin a heallh care facllity, o

— plan lo iravel inlernationally,

« Persoiis vaceinaled tiefore 1978 wilh either kited mumps vactine or mumps vaceina of
uknoiwn Type wh are al ligh risk for mymps infeclion (e.9., persons who 816 working Ina
health care Laellily) shoild be considared for revaceinalion wilh 2 doses of MMIR vaccine.

Rubella componsnt;

« For woman of chiildbearing age, regardless of birth year, rubella immunity should be
detnrmingd, fthere is no‘avidance of immunlly, women who are not pregnant should be
vaccinated, Pragnant womon wiio do nol iave evidence of immunily should recelve MR
vaccing Upon camplalion of lermiination of pragnancy end before discharge lrom the heallh
care facllity, Heallh care personnel born before 1857:

« For unvacainated heallh care personnel born befora 1957 who lack laboralary evidence
of meastes, mumps, andfor rubelia Immunily o laburatory confirenalian of disease, health
caro facilllies should consider vaceinating personnel willt 2 doges of MMR vacelie al the
appropiale Interval for meosles and mumps o 1 dusa of MMR vacelne for whells,

8, Pneumococcal (13-valent pneumococcal conjugate vaccine [PcVi3jand

23-valenl pneumococeal polysaccharide \rax:clhaTPPSV::!]}vlchnallon

« General Inlormalion

— When indicaled, only a single dose of PCV131s recommended for adulls.

— No additional dose of PPSV23is Indicated for adulls vaccinaled with PPSV23 al or after

ago 65 years.

— When bolh PCV13 and PPSV23 are Indlcaled, PCV13 ghould be administered firsl; PGV13
and PPSV23 should nol be administered during the same visil,

— When indicated, PCV13 and PPSV23 should be adminisierad to adulls whose
pneumococcal vaccinallon historyis incomplete ar unknown,

« Adulls aged 65 years or older wha

— Have not received PCV13 or PPSV23: Adminlster PCV13 lollowed by PPSV23in 6 lo 12
monlhs.

— Have nol received PCVA3 bul have received a dose of PPSV23 al age 65 years or older:
A&mlnlsler PCV13 3l least 1 year after the dose of PPSV23 received al age 65 years or
older.

— Have no! teceived PCVA3 bul have recelved 1 or more doses of PPEV2) blare age 650
Administar PCV13 al least 1 year afler {he mosl recent dose of PPEV23; adminlster 3 dose

Agril-May 2016 LA County Department of Public Health Rx for Prevention

13



i
Py

Figure 6. Footnotes—Immunization Schedule for Adults 19 Years and Older-United States, 2015. (Cont'd)

of PPSY24 6 o 12 monlhs after PCV13, ar as soon as possible it this ime window has
passed, and Al lesst 5 years aller the most recent dose of PPSV23.

— Have recelved POVI bl nol PPV balorg age 65 yaors: Administor PPSV23 61012
months altar POME oF a5 oo a4 possible 11 this Ume windaw hits passed.

— Itave recetved FOV1D snd 1or more dnges of PESVZY befors g 65 yomn: Adminlster
TTEVII6 10 12 months after POV, or as soon as poseible if this lmes window fas passed,
andl il loast O yean after B most wecapl dose of PPSVZE.

« Adulls aged 19 \hrough 64 years wilh immurocompromising condilions or aratomicst e
functional aggdenia [eBned helow) who

— Hawi tiol fecsived PCVIS or PPEVZS, Administer POVAS (dlloved by PPSV23 51 lnast 8
weks alter PCVA3, administer a second dese of PPSVA 4l feast § years alter the first dose
of PRS2,

— Have ol reecived PGY13 but haye received 1 doge of PPSV23: Adminisier PCVIJ al feast 1
year alter the PPSY23: administer a second dose of PPSV2I 41 Jeas| B wieks aller PCY13
and al least S years aller the first dose of PPSV23,

- tlave nal received PCYAJ but have received 2 doses of PPSVES: Administer PCV13 ai feast 4
year dller lhe mast recenl dose of PPSY23.

— Havie raceived PCVAZ bui nol PP3V23 Adininister PRSVZA i least B weeks allar POVIS,
adininisler a second duse ol FPSY2J at leas| § years afler the first dose of PRGY2D,

-~ Have received PCVAD and 1 dose of PPSY23: Adminislar a secund dose of FPSY23 ai leas! 5
years alley the firsl duse of PRSV23,

» Adulis aged 19 through 64 years wilh cerebrospinal fluid leaks o1 cochlear implants: Adminisler

FCY43 fullowed by PPSV23 at least & waeks alier PCY 13,

« At a6 10 rough 64 years wih chionle laail disoase ok ging congestivie liear| fallee
and aprdlomyopialhing, exolding hypertenslon), chronic kg dizoase (incuding ehtonlc
chatruidlvn ling disaasn, amphyseina, and selhmal, chronls fiver dieenze (ncluding cimhuss),
alcolielsm, w diubeles mellilo: Admialitor PPEV23.

+ Adulls aged 19 through B4 yeurs wha smeke cigarelles:or reside innutsing home or [ong-lerm
care [acliles: Adminicler PPEV23,

« Roiline preimococeal vaseinnlion i not recommandaed for Amprican lhdland Alaska Nalive
s olher adults yptass ey ave he Indications as abovs; howir, poblic el auihofiivs
may congidar recommanding te dse of protifinconcal vaoeines for American Indlans/

Al Maives o othef adulls who lvein areas with Increased fisk fof invasive pacumocoocsl
digande,

+ Immunocompramising canditians hat are indicalians for pneumacacea! vacathution
are: Congerilal or aciyired immunodelidency (ncluding 8- or T-lpmphocyle dabiclency,
cumplemunl deficlenclus, and phagesytlo disordere excluding chranl granulomalous dispase),
HIVinfecllun, chronic mnal failare, hephrotie syndrame, Taukermly, lymphioma, Hoghin
disease, generalized mallgnancy, mulliple mysloma, soll organ ansplan|, and lstiogenic
iminunosuppression (including leng-temm syslemle corficosteralds and rmdiitian erapy).

« Aralomical af lunelional asplenta ihal are indications lor preumagoccal visccinatlon !
Slckl celt diseass and olher hemuglobinapalhles, congenital of atquired asplaili, splene
dysfuncllon, and spleneciomy. Adminislar gaoumoceccel vaccines al least 2 wotks bafore
immunosuppressive tharapy or an eleplive splenoclomy, and as soon a5 postibile o adubbs who
are newly disgnosed with asymplomelic or symplomatic KV infastion,

9. Meningococcal vaccination

+ Adminisler 2 doses of quadrivalent meningasoceal conjugate vaceine (MonACWY [Monaclra,
Menveal) al least 2 mondhs apar ¥ adalls of all ages-with anatemical o nclionel ssphinia or
gressstent conplement componenl deficiencies. NIV Infection i nod an indication for rouline
varcinatien with MeoACWY. I an HiV-infectad person of any agi Is vacelnated, 2 doses of
RonACHY shoukd be adinfilsiored at loas! 2 months 201,

+ Admindgler a single dose of meninguoocsal vaccine W mictobiologists routinely axposed
to taolales of Nedssara mentugilidis, millary reciulta, permons al risk during on outbreak
allril:utabie fo o vaceing serogroup, and personswho travel 10 o live I couniries in which
mopingococeal disgasa s hypurandomic of eplienie,

+ Flrsl-ynar college sudanis up hroegh age 21 years who are living In tesldanes halls should Le
wanelnated (hoy have nol recelved & dose on or aller ek 18(h binihday.

+ MenALWY is pratesed foradulle with any of the precuding indiealions who are agad 55 years
oryeunger as witl ss lar alls aged 55 years o vlder who

8) ward vaceinated previoushewith MenAGWY and ate |ecommended R tevaceination, of

b) for whom muliple deses are anllcipated. Menlngososcal polysaerharide vaccine (MPSVA

(Menomuna]} is preferred for adulls aged 55

years o1 older who have not received MenACWY previously and who require o single dose anly

(e.g., havelers).

» Rovaecinalion with MenACWY every B years |5 recommended fof adulls proviously
vareialed with MenAGWY or MPSVA who remain at incressed rigk for infeclion (2.4., adulls
wiili anatomical of lunclional asplenia, porsistent comipleirent samponent deficiencies, or
micrabiologisis),

10. Hepatitis A vaccination

« Vacginale any person seeking proleclien from hepatilis A virus (HAV) infection and persons
wilh any of the following indications:

— men who have sex wilh men and parsons who use injecticn or noninjecton iilicil drugs;

— peisons working wilh HAV-infecled primales or with HAV in 3 research labaratory selting:

— persons wilh chronic liver disease and persons who receive clotling kaclor concentrales;

— persons Iraveling ta or working in countries that have high or intermediait endemlcity of

hgpalilis A; and

Rx for Prevention | A County Department of Public leallh  April-May 2015

— unvacinaled persans who anlicipale slose peisonal contast (e.q., housetiold of reguiar
babysitling) with an inlernalicnal adoplee dutng ke first 80 days afler arrival in he Uniled
Slales fram & countey with filgh or Iniermediale endemicity, {See focinote 1 tar mote
infotmation o travel tecommindalons.} The hrat dase of he 2-dosa bepulilis Avancing
serles should bo adiminislered 5 soon s vdoplion is planied, Idesly 2 of moro weeks belare
Ihe arrival of the adoples.

« Single-antigen vacaine tarmulations should be adalnisiers in a 2-dosg aehedils wbeflbey 0
ana i 1o 12 monihs {Havix), or Cand 6 10 18 months (Vagta), Fihe combined hepatils A and
hppalills B vsealne {Twinrix) It used, admintaler 3doses al 6, 1, and fmonths; altematively, s
4-idosy sehisiule may be usel, adninislerad on days 0, 7, and 21 1o 30 followed by a osler
doro ol month 12,

11, Hepatitis B vaccinatlon

«Vaceinale persans with any of the foilowing indicalions and any persan sesking prolection fiam
hepalitis 8 virys (HBV) infeclicn:

— sexvally active persons who are nol in a long-tetm, mitusily monogamous refatisnship

{0, Bersons wilh more than 1 sex pailnen during Be previoys B noaths); peizons saeking
gvalugllon or trgalment for a sesually ransmilled disesse {STO); current or focen! injeciion
drug users; and men who have sex with men;

— heallh care personnel and pubkc sateiy warkers who are peienlially exposed (o blogd or other
infectious body Muids;

— persons willy diabales who sre younger than gge 60 yoars as soon as leasible afle: diaguosis;
piersons wiih diabeles Who aie 4gg B0 years or uldor athe discrelion ol (he Irfaling clinician
baged 0n e fkelhood of acqulring HBY infastior, inchuding the tisk posod by an ncreased
anod foraseisted blood ghicose maniiotlig in fomgetin cany Gaililes, Ihe Dkablioad of
saperiencing chionic sequele I infectod with HBY, o Ihe ikabhood of Immiune feaponse Lo
vaceinalion,

— pethons vall and-stegi renb! disease, inchiding Eatients receiving himadilysls, persons with

1Y infection, and carsons with chronle lver dissass:

— household conlgets ond sex parlivers of hepalltis B sutface anfigen-posiive parsons, ollents
and stall mombers of nstintions for persons wil developanental disabililies, and intesni o al
Iravelers to ceuntries wilh high or Infermediat fravalence of evarie HBV inticlion; and

ol atebaltes iny e followdng sellinge; STO teatment fouities, WV lesting s ioalmant
tacilitles, faeiilies providing dug abizse treatment and prevanlion services, healih cane
seflings largeling rervices lo injatlion diug iners or imen whe have sex will men, cotrecionl
facilllies, sid-sloge ranal diseass programs and facilites Jor chronic hemodialysss patieals,
ani Ingtutions and nonresidasial day care faciéhies for persons with developmental
digubififes

« Adminlster fhlssing dozus (¢ compleln a 3-dose serles of hepalilis 6 vaccine to thosa perssis
ol viskeinated of nol complziely vaccinaled. The Becond dose should be adminisiered 1 moslh
aller this firel dose; e thitd dose should be given al feast 2 monthe afier Ihe gecond dose
(ond at leatt 4 months aftes the st dose). )f the combined hepalitis A and hepatils B vaccine
(Iwinrix) is used, give 3 doses 01 0, 1, and € monlhc; allemalively, 5 4-dogs Twinrix schedule,
dmintislered on days 0, 7, and 1 (o 30 loliowed by a booster dose al monih 12 may te used

« Adull patients rocsiving hentodialysis or with other immunccampromising conditio id
reselve 1 dosa of 40 mepiml (Recombivax [18) edminislered on a 3-dose schedule at 9, 1,
and B monihs or 2 doses Of 20 imey/mL (Enyens-8) administerzd siullsnecusly onl 4 4-dose
sohadule al 0, 1, 2, and b monihs,

12. Haemophilus Influenzae type b (HIb) vaccination

+ Ot s oF Miby wageine showkd be adiinisfered In parsans who liaviranatomicdl or fupclional
aspliania of sickle ol diveats of e nidatgoing eheotive s pleuGlony If (hey have nal
mmdmnseiz maealvad Hib vaceine. Hit vactinafion 14 or tore days betore splimectony s
supgesled.

«Reolplents ol a heinatopolelic stem cell Wransplant HSCT) ahould be vaccinated will o 3-dose
Iegman & 1o 12 monthis alter n siiocesaful ransplant, regardiess of vacainalion Ristary; ai iast
4 weeks should separaie doges.

« Hib vaccine is nol recommended for aduits wilh HIV infeclion since hair risk (ar Hily inferlion
is low.

13, iImmunocompromising conditions

«Inactivated vaccines generslly are accepiable (g.g., pneumacocaal, meningacoceal, and
inaclivaled Inluenza vaccine) and live Vaccines gererally are avoided in persons wih immune
deficiencles or immunocompromising conditions. h'ormalion on specific conditions is avalabie
al www.edc,govivaccines/hoplacip: recsfindex hitl.




Table 1. Contraindications and Precautions to Commanly Used Vaccines in Adults

Waeglnarr o i(dnlr&ilh_dl‘éa_tlhns-' D DA R TR R N "fPrﬁcdt’uiléns" : :
Influenza, Inactivated {IIV)? « Sewvere allergle reactlon (e.g. anaphylaxis) alter prvious dose of any + Muderate ar severe acute Illness with or without fever
Influenza Vacrine: or to a vaceing companent, inchiding egg proteln + History (:‘lf Gulflaln-Barré Syndrome within § weeks of previous nfluenza
vatclnation
- Adults who expetience only lives with exposure to eggs may receive RIV of,
with additlonal safety precautions, IV
Influenza, recambinant (RIV) + Severe Mlvrgie reaction (e.g. anaphylaxis) after previnis duse of RIV ar to 4 + Moderate or severe acute Iliness with or without fever
vactine cofiponent. RIV does not contaln any egg protein? + Histaty of Gulllaln-Barrd Syndrome within 6 weks of previous Influenza
. s - | —— - ! ) vaccination p
tnfluenza, live attenuated (LAVI2 | « Severe atleiic reaction {e.q , anapliylaxit) 1o any component of the vaccine, | « Moderktior sevore acute Hlness with or whhout fever,
af to  previous dose of anﬂnng enzil varcine « Mistory of Gulllain-farrd Syndrome within 6 weeks of previous influenza
« In addition, ACIP recommends that LAIV not be used In the following vaccinatlon ) : i
poputations: + Asthima Iri persons aged 5 yeors and oldee
e Egiant women « Oher chionlc medical conditions, e.g. other chionic lung diseases, chionfc
— Iminunosuppressed adults cardloyascilar disease (exehiding Isolated hypertension), diabetet, chioal
— zdults with €g allergy of any severity 1nal or hepatic diseass, b gle disease, neurologle disease, a
—adiifis who have taken infhienza antiviral medicatlons { tadin holle disorders ;
Imantading, Ilr, or ogeltamivi) withla the previous 48 houry;
avoild e of these antiviml deiigs for 14 :_!nu after vaccination
Tetanys, diphtherla, pertussis « Severe allergic reaction {e.g., anaphylaxis) after a previous dose or w a + Maoderate ot sevére acuie lliness with or without fever
! {Tdap}: tetenus, diphtherla (Td) vaccine component + Gulllaln-Barrd Syndrome within 6 weeks after 3 previous dose of tetanus
« For partussls-conialilng vm:]m ej\j:oplmnl-mthy (eq. coma, deereasod wnold-containlhg vaccine ]
lavel of consclousness, of g a ot to anpihor « History of Arthusstypo lyporsensitivity resctions alter a provious dose of
idontifable cause within 7 days df alministration of a previous dose of tetanus ar diphthera toxaid-contalning vaccine; defee vaccinatlon until at
ap, dip it ;_'d o .;""E‘. li ' {011, ot diphtiverla and feast 10 years have elapsed since the last retanus toxokd.contalnlng vacelne
Tetanis foxolds acelulian pertussis (DTaP) vaecin « For periusslscontaining vaccines: prog ot N Pl
dihorder, u lled sl ot progressive encephalopathy uniil a
e . treatment reglped hasb bllshod aind the condition has stabilieed
Varlcella, + Severe dllergle roaction (e, anaphylaxls) alter a previous dose orto a < Recent (within 11 manths) recelnt of antibody-containing blood product
vacchne component tspecific Interyal depends an produey® y
. Kq:\;qu t;whr: llilt;iunmll'ﬁ(kmq‘ talg. fion) lunrwluw. and solid tusnars, |+ Moderate or severe acute llingss with or withaus fever
tecelpt of chemotherapy, It defickeiity, ot Isag e + Recelpt of specific antivirals (Le., acyclovir, faimcickovir, or valacyelavin 24
lnnwnowippiessive lilﬂﬂpr." ol pathints vallckucnan inmunodeficiency Hours befare vacclnatian; avold m?d thesannthvical drugs for 14 days after
virus [HIV] infection vl aie severely immunacompiamised) vaccination
- » Ifognancy b el = -
Human paplllomavirys (HPV) + Spvero allergle reaction (e.g, anaphylaxis) aftet a previous dose or to a + Moderte of severs acute Hiness with or without fever
vacdne component « Pregnancy
Zoster® « Suvere allerglc reaction (e.q. anaphylaxls) 1o 3 vacclne component + Moderate or severe acule [liness with o without faver
« Known severs inmunodeficlency (e-g. from } logk and solid tumors, | + Meceipt of specific antivirals (Le, acyclovh, famelclovig or valacyclovir] 24
recelpt ol dmmm\mp{;m long-term Iveihetapyd or haurs biefore vacelnation; avold use of these antivirl drugs lar 14 days aftar
1 patlents with HIV infection who are severely L I vatcination
g v Pregnancy I8
Measles, mumps, rubella (MMR)* | » Severe allergic reaction (e.g. anuphylaxis) afrer a previous dose or to a + Moderite or seyere stute lliness wilh or withodt fever
vaccine componant + Heeant (within 11 months) recelpt of antibody ining blood product
< Knovwn severe | fefcluncy (e flom1 lagic and sl tumos, {apecific inteival depends an praduct)®
recelptof chemothetapy, congenital Il_lnndlndklency. ot long-teim + Histary of thrambacytopenta of thrombocytopenlc purp
i o e at patlents with NIV inlfection who am severcly | o0y for tubeccultn skin testing®
- + Pregnancy | ) e o
Pneumdicoccsl conjugate (PCV13) | + Soveere allergic reaction fe. < anaphylaxk) after a :;reviout dossortoa + Moderate or severe acute lliness with ar without fever
vaeelne component. frighug 1o any vacelne contalning _qlphuwrla toxold | N - -
Preumococcal polyssccharlde + Severe allergle reaction {e.g., anaphylasis) alter a previous dose of fo + Moderate arsevere ncute lliness with or without fever
EQPW}J_} vaccing component A
Mcnh;&muL cohjugate ++Severe allergle reaction {e.g., anaphylaxis) after a previous dose orto a « Moderate of severe acute (liness with or without fever
{MenACWY) Wnl. vaccine component
olysaccharide (MIV4) | _ - A e,
Hepatltis A « Severe allergic reactlon (e.g, anaphylaxls) after a previous dose of 10 a « Moderate or severe acute lllness with or without fever
| vacdne component . - u | -
Hepatltls B + Sovere allergic teackion (e.g, anaghylaxls) after a previaus dose orto 2 = Moderate or severe acute liness with or withoul lever
vaccine component - - —— = .
Haemophilus influenzae Type b + Severe aflergle reactlon (e.g. anaphylaxls) after a previous duse ortoa + Moderate or sevens acuts lllness with ar without fever
(HIb) vaccine component = ma—

1, Vacelna packagi nsarts and the fub Aél?fummmmnmlor thete vacchnes shild bﬁ.:&nmlnd_fu addionsl Inaimavs on vaceine related contsatndications and precattions and for inore infotmation on
vateiin secpients. Events gt conditions isted as precautions should be revinwed carefully, Banehits of and risks for admintsterlng » speclfic vacelne to 2 person Under thisia Eircuimstancits shiauld be corlideted. W ihe
itk from the vacelne s belleved to outvadgh the beset, the vaccne should nol be sdminlyened 1 v benati of vaccination I ln:l-mi 0 outwerigh the ikk, U wacthne should be adminlitered: b contralndication

152 condition In s recilent that Ineseases th chaner of a sutkous adverse reaction. Therchoe, a varcine shou'd nbt bo ad lon b present.
2. For mare Infgrmatiun on ute of Infutas vaceings smong persens with wgq allghe and 3 complete st of conditions that €OC I bl ey 1o avald recetving LAV, see COC Preventiop and canlral of
| Infh with vacclneg: i Intlanyof thiAdvivory Commilttee bo fmtmunization Practlves (ACIP) — United Sates, 201 4-15 Infhieiiza Season, MMVR m'.m_r‘m:m_er.

3, LAIV, MMR, varlcella, or zoster vaccines can be adminlstered on the same day. If not administered an the same day, live vaccines shou!ld be separated by at keast 28 days,

4, Immunostppressive sterold dose s consldered to b 22 weuis of dally recelpt of 20 mg of predinisone ot tha erulvalont, Vacclnathin should be deferied for At (east | mocith alter diconitinuation of such therapy.
Pyoniders should consult ACIP recorntimdations for catmplele Inf Ion on the use ol speciic live vaeclnes sinong persons on kninutie-sipprcssing medie ations or with mmune supptessien because of ether
feasons,

5. Vitrine should bier diéferradd for the appropriate Intierval if teplaciiment innnme ng;rlmIAn produtts At belny sdinintstered. St COL General recomm
Commitcee on hnmunization Practices (ACIF), MR 201 160(0N0, RR-21, Avallable at wwvw.cdegomivacclne st/ pinihoakfindes himi.

6. Masstes vatelnnton myight sippnes wboreulin ieectivity 1emporanly Measles-contalning vaccine viay b addatintitared on the samir day & wibenulin sisum-\ung.l‘mﬂhu canncit be parfarmed untllaftier the day
of MMR vaccination, the leit should ba podponed for at joast 4wﬂe{1 sBtarthee vaceinntian. )t aa urgent peed exlsts 10 <kin 1esy, doso with the undesstanding that maciviy might be reduced by thevaccine,

* Adapted from COC Table 6, Contraindicatlons smid precautions 1o sautimonly uyed vaceines, Gunesal recomy L re
Practiees. MAMWIE 200 150{Ne IR<2):40-41 and from Atkinson W, Wolfie S, Hambatsky 1 eds. Appenidlx A Epldernicloqy and prevention of vactlie ritable i
Foundation, 2017 Avatlabie st wecdc govivacdnes/pubupinkbookindes himl

+ Ragarding latex allargy, consult the package insert for any vaccine administered.

dations on ratllon: rec Jatlons of the Advisory

A Atheia i § lration datlons of the Advisny Committee an Immunlsation
12% ed. Washington, DC Publls Healih

V.S, Dapartmant of

Health and Human Services
Cenlers for Disease

Control and Preventivn

csa4e08) 1

April-May 2015 LA County Department of Public Health Rx for Prevention



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention and Treatment of Pertussis in Hospital Employees

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Employee Health

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date: TBD
Infection Control Employee Wellness

PURPOSE:

To define how the hospital will protect its patients, employees, and respond to outbreaks of
Pertussis in the community

POLICY:

1. Employees who fit the definition of a close contact (see attached information sheet), or who
have been coughing for greater than 2 weeks without a known positive close contact may
obtain a nasopharyngeal swab if sent by a licensed independent practitioner (physician, nurse
practitioner, or physician’s assistant) or the employee health nurse.

a. The ordering practitioner will fill out the appropriate laboratory order form:.
b. The employee needs to take the order to Central Registration.

¢. The front registrar will notify RT.

d. RT will obtain the nasal swab and take the specimen and order to the lab.

2. Laboratory confirmation of pertussis can be difficult; clinicians may need to make a
presumptive diagnosis of likely pertussis before the cough has been present for 2 weeks in
order to treat the case and manage contacts appropriately. The diagnosis can be made on the
basis of known exposure, prolonged paroxysmal coughing with associated findings, such as
post-tussive vomiting and lymphocytosis.

3. If likely contact of NIH employees with patients or other staff members known or suspected
to have active pertu551s occurs, a licensed independent practitioner with prescription
privileges may write a prescrlptlon for treatment or prophylaxis with an antibiotic.

a. ‘The hospital pharmacy will fill valid prescriptions without charge.

b. Treatment will not be initiated after a period equal to or greater than 3 weeks after
onset of symptoms because it is not recommended by CDC and has not been
proven.to be of benefit to employees or contacts.

Identification and notification of contacts:

4. If employees are contacts of highly suspected or confirmed pertussis cases, they will be
notified of their exposure as soon as possible and educated regarding signs and symptoms of
pertussis. Chemoprophylaxis may be recommended.

Close contacts include those who have had:
a. Direct contact with respiratory, oral or nasal secretions from a symptomatic case.
b. Face-to-face contact, regardless of duration, with a case who is symptomatic (e.g.,
in the catarrhal or paroxysmal period of illness.
¢. Shared confined space in close proximity for a prolonged period of time; such as
> | hour with a symptomatic case.

Page 1 of 4




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention and Treatment of Pertussis in Hospital Employees

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Employee Health

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date: TBD
Infection Control Employee Wellness

Definition of health care worker and patient close contacts:

5. Health care worker contacts: A HCW without the appropriate personal protective equipment
required for the implementation of droplet precautions having close contact with a case;
including activities such as performing a physical exan{;&natign suctioning, bronchoscopy,

. . .. e iy o3
feeding, bathing and other procedures requiring prolrg,rggeavmz, osé interaction.

a. Patient close contacts: Close contact incliides patients hoimvc shared a room or
common living space with a pertussis cagﬁz\;&or patients who have been directly
cared for by a HCW. W » ¢
Note: Determination of close contacts slaoh@fﬁqm{irc inclusive in settings such as
a newborn nursery or the pediatric area, becausei nfants are at risk for deyeloping
severe disease. ,.a-;':’:"“--w ) = '

6. Outpatient contacts: Most individuals who were in waiting rooms otother care areas in clinics
and outpatient settings at the same time as a pertussis case shoulﬁ’f‘?{%iﬁ;bc considered close

Pl To L1 i) lﬁ
contacts. ,;.t‘?}iQ' : \fjﬂ :I‘..
4 7
Notification of local health care providers: dfff . e
."_‘.} : ” : 4 "{
7. Inyo County Health Department wé__!,[._;g?li ﬁl@cal physici siff;{-; _l‘i[l,lqlic and the hospital of
any outbreak of pertussis among I}‘Eggﬁtul employegs or amon';_ill%ﬁhblic.

1_‘]

Vaccination wuh'ldap (ADACE ) N i
8. AlINIH employces will bevacgitiated with Tdap. The
have a medical éﬁ;jtg@jndi.eatioﬁ"."{aﬁl. vaccine.

hZ o Y

9. The Cal-OSHA Aetosolized Trans nis ;1]3 ¢ Disease Standard does allow for a signed
declination, but'as'most will always need aitetanus booster, this will be the rare case.

£

10. Tdap will be provided ﬁgﬁﬁcl%argc to ali‘ﬁ?}‘_ﬁ%ﬁmloyee&

: = h
Active surveillance of contacts (i coupliwateh):
—
3 LA enct ':"/ : 3 f . ;
11. HCWSs who ate close contacts Qﬂ those with pertussis will be monitored for acute illness for
at least 21 days aftefitheir _I_gﬁ%;g';fﬁposurc to an infectious case.

Restriction of symptomati¢ health care workers:

13. Exposed HCW’s may be excluded from work under cettain circumstances:
a. HCWs who are symptomatic after exposure to a case may be relieved from direct
patient contact until 5 days after the start of appropriate antimicrobial treatment.
b. HCWSs with symptoms of pertussis who cannot take or refuse to take
antimicrobial therapy will be excluded from work for 21 days from onset of
catarrhal symptoms.

Reporting of cases:

Page 2 of 4




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention and Treatment of Pertussis in Hospital Employees

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Employee Health

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date: TBD
Infection Control Employee Wellness

14. Both confirmed and probable cases must be reported to DHS using the DHS Pertussis Case
Report form (attached to this policy).

Infection control precautions in the Hospital and associated Medical Clinics:

15. All HCWs will practice droplet precautions when examining a patient with suspected or
confirmed pertussis.

16. All hospitalized patients with diagnosed or suspected pertu531s will be place on droplet
precautions until the diagnosis is ruled out or until they have been on effective drug therapy
for 5 days. If the patient does not receive drug therapy, she/he willbe isolated for 21 days
after onset of illness, if still hospitalized.

PROCEDURE:

1. Confirm report that suspected case(s) meets case definition and/or is highly suspected
a. Positive contact, plus cough >1 wecek: ‘Culture, Exclude from work, Treatment
b. /Negative contact but cough> 2 weeks: Culture, Exclude from work, Treatment
2. Obtain laboratory specimenifor diagnosis. PCR tests (nasopharyngeal swabs) are done
free of charge at NIH’s laboratory by the Respiratory. Care Department.
See attached guidelines for the testing procedure for Pertussis
3. Identify and notify contacts: special emphasis should be given to identifying those at high
risk for severe pertussis or those who may transmit the disease to persons at high risk for
severe disease.
4, Recommend chemoprophylaxis as appropriate: Initiate as soon as possible and
chemoprophylaxis is recommended regardless of age and vaccination status.
Employee may go to his/her health care provider or go directly to NIH pharmacy with a
prescription for the appropriate medication.
Alert local physicians andother health care providers.
Exclude symptomatic persons from work as appropriate.
Vaccinate those who are not up-to-date for pertussis.
Active surveillance of close contacts for at least 21 days after their last exposure to an
infectious case.
9. Make sure the appropriate case report form has been sent to DHS.

SRR

References:
1. CDPH Pertussis Report, April 20, 2015
2. CDPH Pertussis: Public Health Investigation, July, 2014
3. CDPII Pertussis Case Report Form, CDPH 8258, Jan, 2014

Page 3 of 4



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention and Treatment of Pertussis in Hospital Employees

Scope: Hospital Wide

Manual: Employee Health

Source: Manager of Employee Health
Infection Control Employee Wellness

Effective Date: TBD

Committee Approval Date
Infection Control Committee 6/30/15
Medical Executive Committee

Board of Directors

Developed: 6/06

Revised: 8/11, 4/13

Reviewed: 12/13, 5/14 bs, 5/15 nh
Supersedes

Page 4 of 4




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention of Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections (UTI's), Guidelines

Scope: All Unit Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date: September 2007
Infection Control Employee Wellness

PURPOSE:
To reduce the incidence of catheter associated UTI's by employing effective infection control measures.

POLICY:

1. Urinary catheterization should be done only when medically necessary.
2. Catheters should be removed as soon as medically possible.

3. A closed drainage system must be maintained.

4. Strict aseptic technique must be maintained during catheterization.

The following is a guideline of preventive measures; for catheterization.and care follow specific policies in the Med-Surg
Manual. i

PREVENTIVE MEASURES:
1, Catheter Insertion:

a. The use of strict aseptic technique and sterile equipment is imperative in infection

prevention.
b. Clean the.urethral meatus prior to catheter insertion with soap and water
c. The appropriate catheter tray shall be selected for each eatheterization,
d. The urethra shall be adequately lubricated prior to insertion.
e. Document the insertion of the catheter in the patient’s record

f. Local anesthesia with topical Lidocaine product approved for use in this facility may be
used, see policy
2 Securing the Catheter
a. Excessive moyement of the catheter in the urethra may cause itritation and urethral traction
and may facilitate access of bacteria to the bladder.
b. The drainage tubing should besecured to the thigh with tape or a catheter strap; tape tubing
rather than catheter.
c. For an immobile male (for chronic neurogenic or paralyzed patient), the catheter may be
taped to the lower abdomen, which prevents penile/scrotal fistula formation.
d. Catheters shall, at all times, be positioned over the leg; contamination from the rectal area
is very likely if the catheter is positioned under the leg.
3 Catheter Care:

a. Nursing personnel shall perform perineal care every 8 hours and as needed.



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention of Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections (UTI's), Guidelines

Scope: All Unit Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date: September 2007

Infection Control Employee Wellness

b. Catheter care shall be directed toward keeping the perineal area, catheter and meatus clean,
using soap and clean water and washcloth. Thorough rinsing with clean water is important
to remove soap and encrustations.

c. On each shift, nursing personnel will inspect peri ncuma‘calheee Jor cteaullnebs, appropriate
taping and placement over leg. The catheter should nol be nmntpulatcd I.II11'ICCU-‘;¢!I ily.

® 6:2

d. More frequent cleaning will be necessary if soiling with drafﬂ'agea or stool occurs.

e. Catheter care with Povodine-Iodine and Betadine ointmefit is nofbchcved to be effective in
preventing catheter-associated UTT's.

4. Closed Drainage System: e 4 f:; "
a. A closed urinary drainage system must be m"uulnmca ﬁ,;%@ .
b. Ifirrigation is necessary to remove clots: I;J ik
1. Follow policy for bladder 1rubat1011 e :{"""
2. Routine catheter lmg,anon 15}101 ‘indicated. [,_ N

c. Ifit hcwmes 11cwssury to chzmg "r"[]c drainage bag, ﬂ)e»glgh%(}
disinfected El‘l_ r o, sepmmlon by thorough cleansing (scribbing) with alcohol swab.

d.

55 Urinary Flow:
a.
b.
c.
6. Drainage Bags:

a.

Keep the catheter co!_le,gl_rou bag helovg_: lj{_%pvcl of the bladder at all times

Unobstructed flow shall be. mainmlncal _

The catheteriand tubing should b_t_’:-_k(_‘-Pl from kinking

Catheter plu‘g's_-grc not to be used.

It is not necessary (0’ change tl;c urinary drainage bag unless it leaks or sediment
accumulates.

If a bag change is indicated, aseptic technique shall be employed.

When emptying the drainage bag, the drain spigot must never touch the measuring
container.

Leg bags are not routinely used for hospitalized patients, but may be indicated for
discharge planning, if to be used at home. — Physician to designate.

Most drainage systems have anti-reflux valves, if not, bags should be kept below bladder

level.




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
) POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Prevention of Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections (UTI's), Guidelines

Scope: All Unit Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date: September 2007
Infection Control Employee Wellness

T Specimen Collection:;
a. Follow procedure as indicated under policy “Bladder Catheterization” section on specimen
collection from Foley catheter.
8. Catheter Change:
a. Indwelling catheters should not be changed if functioning well.
b. Catheters must not be "pushed in further" or advanced onge the catheter tubing is no longer
sterile. If this is necessary, remove and replace catheter. Cléaning the tubing will noz

render it sterile

Cross Reference:

1. Foley Removal Protocol

Reference:

HICPAC, Guideline For Prevention Of Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infections
2009; Carolyn V. Gould MD, MSCR ; Craig A. Umscheid MD, MSCE RajenderK
Agarwal, MD, MPH ; Grefchen Kuntz, MSW, MSLIS 'David A. Pegues MD and the

Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Committee (HICPAC) ‘i
http://www.cdc. gov!h|cnac!ndeCAUTIICAUTIqmdelmezoogfinal pdf

Approval Date
CCOC
Infection Control Commiltee ; 6/30/15

Medical Executive Comiittee

Board of Executive L

Committee(s) approval needed X Yes. No Infection Control Committee
Index Listing: Guidelines for Pr evention of Catl Cathetcr Associated UTI's

Initiated: July, 1985.

Revised: 1/95, 8/97; 9/98; 10/99, 5/03, 5/05, 7/10bss, 2/11 bss, 9/12 BS,5-14bss
Reviewed:5/15 nh



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Title: Prevention of Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections (UTT's); Guidelines

Scope: All Unit

Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual

Source: Manager of Employee Health
Infection Control Employee Wellness

Effective Date: September 2007

6:2.2



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Foley Removal Protocol
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual
Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
Infection Control Employee Wellness

Northern Inyo Hospital Foley Removal Protocol
* Prevent Catheter —Associated Urinary Tract Infections ¢

Interventions
¢ Insert only when necessary- must have an order.

*  Write insertion date, time, and initials on urine bag with permanent marker.

¢ Engage in proper hand hygiene when handling catheter.

¢ Use catheter-securing device. _

* Label the emptying device with the patient’s name and date, and discard it discharge.

* Ensure perineum was cleansed with soap and water during morning carc (ask patient care giver or
spot check). -

* Hang Foley bag on bed frame, making sure bag and tubing do not come in contact with the floor.

* Ensure Foley tubing is free of obstruction and kink free.

* Document insertion in Clinical Care station under the GU tab of the Daily assessment or other
appropriate area, paper or electronic, specific to each department.

Nurse Driven Foley Removal Protocol
* See “Foley Catheter Removal Proto,col” algorithm

Documentation

Complete daily assessment with' elear documentatlon using the GU tab in Clinical care Station
(or department specific paper work)i in regard to a Foley Catheter in place every shift. Document
insertion and discontinue date on patient care summary (‘electron and/or department specific
paper work).

National Healthcare Safety Network CAUTI Criteria 1

Patient had an indwelling urinary catheter in place at the time of or within 48 hours prior to
specimen collecuon ;

and

at least 1 of the following signs or symptoms with no other recognized cause: fever (>38 [1C),
suprapubic tenderness, or costovertebral angle pain or tenderness

and :

a positive urine culture of>:10° colony-forming units (CFU)/ ml with no more than 2 species of
microorganisms,

National Healthcare Safety Network CAUTI Criteria 2

Patient had an indwelling urinary catheter in place at the time of or within 48 hours prior to
specimen collection
and
at least 1 of the following signs or symptoms with no other recognized cause: fever (>38 OC),
suprapubic tenderness, or costovertebral angle pain or tenderness
and
positive urinalysis demonstrated by at least 1 of the following findings:
a) Positive dipstick for leukocyte esterase and/ or nitrite
b) Pyuria (urine specimen with > 10 white blood cells [WBC]/mm’ or > 3 WBC/ high power field of

Page 1 of 3




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
Title: Foley Removal Protocol
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual
Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
Infection Control Employee Wellness

unspun urine)
¢) Microorganisms seen on Gram stain of unspun urine

and
positive urine culture of > 10° and < 10° CFU/ ml with no more than 2 species of
microorganisms. :

Cloudy_or foul smelling urine, sediment in the Foley tubing, and lCiliDcf;i:flll'ﬂ <100.40F do
NOT always represent a urinary tract infection

If catheterized patient has _ Assess the need for the Foley:
e Cloudy or foul smelling urine ‘ » I the patient does not need
e Sediment in the Foley tubing R the catheter, notify the

¢ Low grade fever (<100.4°F) 4 Physician for posﬁblc

|

i cmnvwl K ..'.-.'»

nollfy the physician for
possibléreplacement of
existing Tolcy Catheter.

. !-L_..

.b ' '-':l".':t.‘_':f-. STy -r
"‘;l Vi . .'\-. ll\-
il Ja

Cross Reference: "LJ\ A

‘?

1. Prevention of Catheter Associated Urufary Tract lnfcctlons {UTI s), Guldelmes

W

revention Of Catheter—Assoclated Urlnary Tract

Reftirence &
HICRAC, Guideline For R

A

Infechoﬂzoog Ca;§! [

(HICF’AC)
Approval b Date
Infection Co:ﬁ‘lﬁlﬁ(,‘onmlittee el 6/30/2015
Medical Execuﬁi’,é}’.@._(u_n_mittce ' oY
| Board of Directors © el

R e T
= T e T

Revised: 5/15 NH
Reviewed:
Supercedes:

Index Listings:

Initiated:
Revised/Reviewed:

Page 2 of 3




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

Title: Foley Removal Protocol

Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Infection Control Orange Manual

Source: Manager of Employee Health Effective Date:
| Infection Control Employee Wellness

Page 3 of 3



ucyezusaYyIey

Augfy3e3 pue PIoA YIea YUM AP §O BWY PUE aWN[oA 30dIN0 pIoIEY
veisAud 1383005 "33 00S< 51 2WIN(oA LEIS i=gpe|q )

Furuiow wau gz vemisAyd awm Ansou Asw Ny AWNdDO8) 00TT »
fusnbsuy vopezpaiayies yBiens

43p10 ue Isanbas pue ueisAyd aul Aoy PINOYS NH :00TT—00L0 =
'PIOA 4IB2 pue uoljEzIEIay3ed yIes

Yim 3nding swnjon jo piozss desy pue sunoy g Alana vonenszayie
yFieas Eniu ||Im Ny 241 ‘22 00v< 5] (2npis24 ploa 3s0d uess Sppeq
i) 4 PuR PI0A 03 33N Y3 SEY Jo I|qeloywoauN 5] Jusied 3y 4
2WAUE 18 JUBUUOIL) S| JUB[IE] o

05 Op 03 J{qeun 51 INq pioa of 23N ue Sei Juaied »

‘ou Jo Buigion Jewiaym “FLHAUE 18 9(qELOIOUN 51 JUBIIE] »
:3uimoy|og ay3 jo Aue 10z 2uap aq pinoys TE35 J3pPE v

{ue3s J=ppejq op jou op) “pioa 0

| 2153 ou sassaudxa pue 3|qenIaod ] J3A3moY FUlRIon TOU 5| Jualtey

"uipiaa Ajsnoaueods s juajieq
siaraweled SUimo0) 341104 NY

| _ 3y} Aq passasse 3q |wm Juaned y3 Ja3ay2ed A3|0) 3Y1 JO |BADWRL J3Y
[EADWIaY 1919(365-3504 JUIISSassy )

T

|||I..// > i ..J.)

popaaN ‘_ | Aajod anoway __
uopay oN !\ !

" / S
~——— A |
|

S3A
|
L1
ON

L

— AaipBumng -

" a10jaq uaaBims AJLLON /

< A21953/p 03 ¥3GHO

ewp/arep/ubls NY ,40203014 Jad panuguoasq seeyqeD Bujlempul, 19ayS 19pi0 juswnang 2

saunjonis Buwonu &abins juss

| “frebims gifojon Juadss pey aney oym sjusnad Joy Ajas Bumupueasip 10} pauinbal strepuo uepEisAyd v o

lesp e st aiay ssequn Asjo) anowss o uginisAud wm J23U02 *ampsoosd jsod wesad sifgopey p
“Bunoyuow ) PUS yim ajzsadoed 0} ege s1jueged 3y} Ja pEnNUNUOISIp S| OF) RIS 0} 1BPIO B

sem J91341ea Ay} auojyaq Buipioa sjqnoy) ou passeidxa Ajeqian ‘palusLIo ‘pee ‘sxeme sl juaged sy ‘)

[2nowrau A3j0) uodn 24myno UL euRNo Joy pesy oN .w_

. Py BULN 10 JBPPRIG L) Yiim snenBgues
24 Jo/pue (Aelms [eR2i0joa ‘NAD *a'1) Lsbims anjed ‘Anlu sappejg

"Fanowl s sejeuieD leinpidy g
*Ae|0} evyy Bumunuodsip 10U Ja) voseal

‘uamsed Buipion Jfet} swnsa) o] 31qe ST UspeEy 7
‘paoeyd

[SIqEIATESE] NY Aq [EA0UWaY 10] SHaS 'g

f/_,_,_ yies Aagog

A

ON

L -

o eAage ay) 3o auou Y1 13)aYIRD
BAOWAJ 0} JOPIO UBRNM 10} ueidjsAyd Amyou o3 Ny

J88y1eD UTEjUiRW 0] JIPI0 UBIDISAUY K8

It Alizuiuus) Jo) 2180 Snnelliey B

20e|d ul |Ius 181eUIED |ENpId] ‘8

SIY ¢ uliim *ainpaoosd jeoibins jsod L
(uoneBbuy

o) s10p0 jegusjod ypm sjuaned ut enmeway ssoig) g
justed | Ajjesiuo

e u ndino Aleuun 40 JUSWaINSesw FJINITE 10) pasy g

suopoaju Buizgooau

‘Spunom jgaunad “Junuj sy) uo s1eajn aunssaid A

abejs 10 |1t 288lS yum Juaned e u eusunuoal Aizuun e
(resoaucfo pue |

NAQ ‘&) Asfuns oinjed Jaye “Joey Aseuun so Jeppelq ”

34 yum snonbyues saunjonas Buwjoau Asbins jusoal
10 fiabins awjad ‘Ainfu; Jappeg ‘Aebing 21Bojoin jusoay
uonounysAp Jappe|q ousBolnapn

uoiaNsqo joelt Ateuun papoadsns 10 umouy

<l

F uoRuRAIRI]
3jpung anupuoy s
e O Area -
T gsassy 03 anupue],
P

./.

N SaA

2 \\\);:a/;
\ Zaed W

i

- QL1 ¥ RlIaeD aas) A
hx\./ éharoy Bununuos Kysnr >

.01 ey Auy Jeoly waney ssog -

=

~

N "

\\\

1000.10dd TYAOWIY H¥313H1IVD ATT104

[ejidsoH oAuj uleypoN



¥1aVYNO/welbolqruyyASojoigolatn/yelsqe/qeT]

(€) ¢ | eeiuownaud ejaisqary |
@)z 1109 eyouayosy |
(%)
pajejost # 1983

waiboiqnuy 843 0 UolEINojes J0j SUOHBPUBLILIOIR [STD) BU Uk SBIBI0SI OF ILONs

00l 001 001 001 00t wauaden3
9. 004 00l 00l ¥6 00t wauadiuj
00 9. 26 . 29 wejdeqns/uljioidwy
16 19 ulodwy
G6 88 6 Ch ujoze§s9
a8 00l 98 TAS) <96 Z8 ejinspuudoyawil |
1l G6 c6 001 86 e, A 68 UIOBXO|JOAST
€L G6 99 00} 66 88 uloexopoidin
00l 001 98 001 i6 ¥6 ullwejusy
56 00} 6 00k 66 86 awidajs)
c6 06 98 00k 16 16 swlipize}an
00} 001 96 00} 16 G6 uAweiqo|
18 <08 ce 86 UICJUBINJOILN
9% 86 & 86 wejdeqoze/did
g6 _ auoXel}d)
ES%T + STVISONOINLLNY
(vou)
{22) {12) «(52) ewownaud dss (¢) (985) (ssjejos! )
sijiqesiw xo|dwod SE2E0}0 _ B20UX0 seluownaud esouibnise 109 wsiuebip
snajold Ipunalj 18joeqonin Jeoeqoisiug =R EN| elieisasy seuowopnasd BIYoLaYos

102 WVNOOIGLLNY

¢ 1aqwaoaq ybnoliyy | Arenuep :pouad swii |
IT7I0VE JALLYO3N NYYDO

1SI90TOHLYd “a' ‘43SYM 'S VA3

VIN¥O4ITYO ‘dOHSIS
TVLIdSOH OANI N¥3HIMON




20Q'¥18YdD\SAOMIAdAV00[IN0 IUIIUOD\S3|1H 12ul91u) AJesodwa | \SMOPUIAN\1J OS0! wi\(eso1\eyepddy\1ydaysn\siasn\:d

(€) %06 | SJEUILLIAJPU| UBBIOG UI[IIDIUSd
(€) %06 | BAIISUSG USaudS Ulffiojuad
m. (9) aeluownsud dang

auun Joj Ajuo aagoayq =,,

Uf1oexXQ 0} J8)oy =,

pauajeaid s)sebbns @048 ul sanoiqRuy

weiBolqquy 8y} 40 Lone|n9en 1o} SUCKRPUALILIOIE! (S0 SU SJe S8lejost 0¢ JLON

xx() w00k UIOJUBINJOI)N
001 00l 00l 001 001 001 pljozsun
E a " ulj0zeja)
_ 8% 0 08F : _ UIIIIoEXQ |
00l | _ T4 86 uljjviusd|zueg
G 0¢ 124 ulAwoiphig
v10C %<CC =6¥ Ll 89 )4 g8 T4 « 88 Uj9EXOlJoAST
E10C %62=19 Ll "39 44 §8 =80 +/8 uioexojjoudiy
CL0C %GE = €8 gL e ) uAwepui|y
L10C %¥E =¢8 98 86 86 EITRLEENENR
010Z %6¢ =08 00} 66 ej|nsjwdoywi |
¥6 00l 66 ufdlWejuan
sajejos! YSHW #
Gl 66 uoAwooue
sBuipui4 Buipuai| 00} 00k m%ﬁw wmv A
YSHIM WSS
SIVIHOMIINILNY
(601) (
> ¥) (121)
(v) Saetol (612) wnoae} Siesae} (sae)081 8)
sajoads asejnbeos snainy
: SN2202 SN2202 wsebig
SN29090J3jug ss(oads sna2020|Ayde}s o e :
Sn22020jAyde;s w3 W3

"} Jaquisoaq ybnouyy | Auenuer :pouad swi)
S8Je(0s] Jo # sejedlpul ( ) :3|qidedsns Jusalsd 19002 JAILISOd WYHD
¥102 NYHOO0IFILNY
1SI90T0HLYd “Q'W 43SYM 'S VAT
VINYO4ITvD ‘dOHSIg
TV.LIdSOH OANI NM3HLNON




to provide more meaningful data.

e.  QAPI continues to monitor dietary referrals and the number of consults completed within 24 hours.

Dletary Consults Performed When Ordered

100.00% O o o0 o o0 o O
90.00%

80.00%

70.00%
| 60.00%
|
| 50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%

5 »" Now

RS S S NN S L
O R 00 & & F & & CONES

mmm ComplianceRate [0 GOAL

Important Note: Some months have small sanplt sizes and % compliance should be interpreted with caution.

f.  Care plans reviewed by Case Management and interventions made to produce care plans. Progress has been made in
developing individualized care plans.

% Care Plans Individualized

00 Goal
90%
80%
70%
60% -
50%
40% -
30% -

20% -

10%

0%

,") . N ™ De b: o ™ » )
S Sl PPN S & & &

g. Fire drill date, times, attendance and outcomes, smoke detector tests, and fire extinguisher test grids have been
approved. All fire drills were complete and compliant from May 6, through present.



h. Pain Re-Assessment. NIH conducts pain re-assessment after administering pain medications and uses a 1-10 scale.
No data since last BOD meeting.

CMS Core Measures Project

1. NIH must submit outcome and process data to CMS according to defined reporting deadlines. Currently, the process for
reporting or the ‘Core Measures’ has the following issues:
a. Very complex and includes multiple internal and external stakeholders.
b.  Heavy reliance on manual data processing and chart review
c.  Access issues with multiple software required for the process
d.  No systematic, standardized approach to data processing, reporting and training for the process.

2. Goals of the project are as follows:
a. Clarify the process and define roles & responsibilities & improve process efficiency
b.  Develop a user-friendly, standardized systematic approach to the process.
¢.  Resolve software access issues & establish total preventive maintenance program.
d.  Develop standard work for this process and incorporate into larger scheme of regulatory reporting.

3. Project Progress:
a. Define: Related processes have been mapped, issues identified
b.  Measure: Metrics identified and waste identified, including delays, manual processes and associated labor hours
¢.  Analyze: ldentified failure points and root causes of failures and waste.
d.  Improve: In process of brainstorming solutions.

Important Note: These issues are pervasive with regulatory reporting processes at NIH. After completion of this project, other
regulatory reporting projects will be conducted to improve the efficiency of these processes and increase opportunity for spending
more time on value-added projects.

Clinical Documentation Improvement

1. Emergency Department Charge Capture Improvement Project charter completed and project initiated.

a. Defined desired outcomes & process characteristics, assessed current outcomes & process characteristics through
staff interviews, document review, observation, research industry practices on this job function, identified process
owners and made recommendations, in process of implementing recommendations for testing.

b. System/process changes have been implemented with measurable improvements noted. HIMS Coordinator is in the
process of validating the changes, establishing ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the new process, and formally
closing out the project.

2. OB Biliscan Charge Capture Improvement Project charter drafted, approved
®  Process/system issues have been identified & defined.
e Baseline process and outcome data has been collected
e  Established root causes of the issues.
o Improvement strategies under consideration: Training modules/manual development, competency & skills

checklist, ongoing monitoring & evaluation audit plan.

3. ICD-10 Implementation project. No new updates since last BOD meeting.

4. Perinatal Chargemaster Improvement Project. No new updates since last BOD meeting.

Leap Frog Survey

. Leapfrog Survey data was submitted on June 26, 2015. Opportunities for improvement will be identified from the
information and incorporated into the hospital-wide QAPI plan.



Performance Excellence Training

/. Continue to develop train-the-trainer AIDET implementation strategy.
*  Pilot tested the “Iniroduction to Customer Service” training with several small group of Phlebotomy employees
on June 4, 12, 26. Opportunities identified to include in the next pilot test with train-the-trainer group in July
include clarifying learning objectives and job description verbiage for managers.

2. Lean Six Sigma Green Belt training. (For more information about this methodology, please visit http://asq.org/cert/six-
sigma-green-belt/bok. Lean Six Sigma is a scientific, data-driven methodology for improving processes and systems.

First class was held on January 9, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

Value of Six Sigma

A Systems Approach & Baldrige
Organizational Drivers & Metrics
Organizational Goals & Six Sigma Projects
Lean Principles Introduction

Team Dynamics Introduction

Second class was held on January 16, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

Change Management & Culture

Project Management

Business Results: Cost of Poor Quality & Saving Lives
Management & Planning Tools

Third class was held on February 6, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

¢  Process Management, Analysis & Documentation
o Voice of the Customer, Customer-Centric Best Practices
o Process Mapping, Work Instructions, Policies & Procedures

Fourth class (short % class) was held on February 13, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

e  Working With Data
e  Probability & Statistics
e  Collecting & Summarizing Data

Fifth class (short %2 class) was held on March 13, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

Measurement System Analysis
Process Capability & Performance
Deming’s Red Bead Game

Review & revise team project charters

Sixth class was held on April 24, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

e Qualitative Analysis
o  Brainstorming & Affinity Diagrams
o Fishbone/Cause & Effect/Ishikawa Diagrams & 5 Whys?
o Failure Modes, Effects and Criticality Analysis & Pareto Charts
o Review Lean & Process Analysis
e Quantitative Analysis
o Statistical Probability Distributions & Hypothesis Testing
o Exploratory Data Analysis (Multi-Vari, Regression, Correlation)



O
Seventh class was held on May 29, 2015 and the following topics were covered:

e Innovation Methods, including, but not limited to the following;
o Random Simulation, Six Thinking Hats
o Benchmarking & Best Practices Research
o Theory of Inventive Problem-Solving (TRIZ)
o SCAMPER
o Poka-Yoke
Design of Experiments
Selecting the best solutions
Pilot test & implement solutions
Control Plans, Statistical Process Control, Project Handover & Close-out

NEXT STEPS:
®  Project & problem work sessions held on 6/26/15 & 7/2/15-Instructor & peer feedback on draft project charters
and other deliverables.

Lean Six Sigma mentoring and coaching involves project facilitation, ensuring proper use of Lean Six Sigma tools, phase
gatekeeping. The goal here is to transition from KNOWLEDGE to ABILITY and to develop critical thinking skills and
help participants apply what they have learned in class or from work experience to a novel situation.

THIS IS LEARNING.

Baldrige and the Journey to Excellence

1. See Handout — Category 4- Measurement, Analysis and Knowledge Management
Strategic Communications Report
Marketing/Internal Communication Projects (See Attached.)

1. Tristan’s Story
2, Patient Portal-posters, postcards, website button link

Events

1. Dr. Meredick is scheduled to speak about Musculoskeletal Health to the community on July 23, 2015; location to be
determined.

Medical Staff Office Report
Medical Staff Office Updates

1. No new updates since last BOD meeting.

Performance Improvement PDSA Projects Key: FOCUS-PDSA CYCLE: F (Find), O (Organize), C (Clarify), U (understand), S(Select), P(Plan), D(DO), S
(Study), A (Act) (See FOCUS-PDSA Handout)



Tristan’s Story

On March 23, at about 5:25 p.m., we got a phone call that no parent wants to
get. Our 12-year-old son, Tristan, had been badly hurt in a bicycle accident,
He told us he was having trouble walking and breathing. Our hearts sank -
we rushed to pick him up and took him straight to Northern Inyo Hospital's
(NIH) emergency room.

Tristan was admitted to NIH for about a week. From our first encounter at the
ER, we knew we were in good hands. In our rush to get to the hospital, we
left Tristan's insurance card behind, but the ER clerk straightened everything
out — this was so reassuring in a time of crisis. The doctor and surgeon were
professional and caring, plus they spoke to our son in his own language, in a
way he could understand, and they explained everything.

Every step of the way, everyone was so involved ~ CT Scan, X-Ray, Respira-
tory, Nursing and Dietary ~ literally a whole team of skilied people working
with us to help our son get better. The NIH healthcare team also took care of
our family, as well. Their skill and compassion afleviated our fears, giving us a
sense of comfort.

Our son is doing great now - thanks to everyone at NIH. We are proud of our
community hospital and would recommend it as the healthcare provider of
choice to our friends and family.

We want to send a big thank you to all of the wonderful staff that helped our
family. We won't forget you.

Sincerely,
Robert Cano Valle & Debra Pooley,
Bishop

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

People you know, caring for people you love




Sign up for our

Patient Portal

Secure, online access to your health care team

= View test results » Request perscription refills
* Request an appointment = View your health records

» Communicate with us = Convenient 24-hour access

Ask our Staff how you can get started today!

2.

Rurar Hearra CLiNIC




Access to Patient portal

/ Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District via the NIH web51te.
150 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, CA 93514

NORTHERN INYO HOs (760) 873-5811 Tewt e A 1A 1A prut This ()

Email This ' Quick Reference a

CONTINUING
Ebucation

- - el t . NIH
.+ ¥ h ¥ A "
EMPLOYMENT ABOL T LS AUXILIARY FOUNDATION

HosPral News Northern Inyo Hospital is a 25-bed critica . profit ,

Chunying ivess Tristuns Story hospital located in scenic Bishop, California. st or
Ungersma named Healthoare

Disctrict Trastee of Year The Northern Inyo Hospital has been governed by the Northern Prompt Pay
2085 DAISY Award Inyo County Local Hospital District Board of Directors since its Discounts
Frowabcitoain Machine Donstion  NCeption in 1949, and has been accredited by The Joint Reietre up 10 0% 1 discerants
NIH named cmpliyes salety Commission for over 40 years. Clih Here Far More Bebale
"Champinn






01°262'695 €8°/8€'0C. €€°02E 195 08'L8¥'6.5 S[EMOENUOD JO)e SNUSASY 1SN
€L°9%5' 186 86 LF0ZYE L 60996 2.6 95°901'666 ueg
6£'891'96€ €1°G/9'89¢ 8Z°2eSCSE v yoe’ 0P sasusdx3 |ejoL
AN VAVIAN LL'€2L'0L9°L 1e'88¥'S2E’L 00'LLV'90V L SNUSASY [E]0L

S10C Ad

¥10C Ad

€10C Ad

cloc A d

1deQ suwipapy JesjonN




AR A L R S R A e



Compounding Radiopharmacy Isolator Page 1 of 4

@ germfree.com hitp:www. garmires. com/product-inesipharmacy-equipmentiradiopharmacy -equipmentradiopharmacy-lsolator!

Compounding Radiopharmacy Isolator

Radiopharmacy Equipment

LFGI SERIES Radiopharmacy Isolator: All Stainless Steel Lead Shielded Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolator

The Germfree Shlelded Isolator provides advanced product and personnel protection while compounding sterile
radiopharmaceuticals. Our Shielded Isolator functions as a Glovebox while operating under negative pressure to meet NIOSH
recommendations. Additionally, the unit complies with USP <797> regulations for operation outside of a cleanroom.

Unidirectional laminar airflow system maintains I1SO Class 5/Class 100 air quality under dynamic
conditions.

HEPA fiitered unidirectional (laminar) air bathes the work area to protect the product from contamination and removes any
particulates generated by sample manipulation. The unit has 1/4" lead shielding for protection while compounding sterile
radiopharmaceuticals. Users are completely shielded from materials being manipulated in the work area.

Germfree's Radiopharmacy Isolator meets or exceeds SO 14644-1 Class 5 (Class 100} air quality under dynamic conditions.
The LFGI Series Isclator does not require an ISO Class 8 cleanroom. The unit fits Atomlab and other dose calibrators. Each
Shielded Isolator undergoes rigorous physical testing to assure the unit meets performance requirements.

Leasing Optlons: Contact us about leasing USP 797 Compounding Equipment.

Product SpecificationsPrint Page Request More information

Product Specifications

+ Dimensions
« Specifications
+ Features

* Airflow

* CACI

OVERALL DIMENSIONS:
LFGI-R: 36" wide * 34" desp  79.5" high

WORK AREA DIMENSIONS:

LFGI-R: 34" wide * 24" desp
Designed to fit through standard door openings and elevators.

LFGI-R (RADIOPHARMACY ISOLATOR):

* Achieve USP <797> compliance without expensive pharmacy ventilation renovations.
+ 1SO Class 5 (Class 100) LFGI Series Isolator does not require an ISO Class 8 cleanroom.
+ 1/4" lead shielding for protection while compounding sterile radiopharmacseuticals.

» Fits Atomlab and other dose calibrators.

SAFETY:

+ Lock-out handle requires a key to access the work area.

+ Digital pressure gauge with audible and visual low pressure alarm.

« Inward face velocity is 95-100 linear feet per minute at gloveport opening to protect operator/product during potential glove loss.

* Glove changes can be made without breaking containment,

* Locking casters are standard.

+ Each Shielded Isolator undergoes rigorous physical testing to assure the unit meets performance requirements. Independent certification is required before use.

FILTRATION AND EXHAUST:

» 100% HEPA filtration of supply and exhaust air from both the work area and the antechamber to provide a fully controlled and contained environment.

+ Long lasting HEPA filters are full coverage and front loading for easy replacement by a certifier.

ERGONOMICS:

+ Hydraulic assist height adjusting stand offers a full 10" range variance allowing operators to sit or stand comfortably for extended time periods.
+ Stainless steel sliding tray inside the airlock pulls forward for loading and unloading items into the airlock to eliminate reaching strains.

http://www.germfree.com/product-lines/pharmacy-equipment/radiopharmacy-equipment/ra...  7/6/2015



Compounding Radiopharmacy Isolator Page 2 of 4

« Two part sleeve/glove system allows the use of most types and sizes of commercially available sterile gloves for better dexterity and tactility.

« Extra large oval gloveports are placed with bottoms together to provide an anthropometrically correct configuration that accommodates a wide range of body
types and increases range of movement.

+ Gloveports have a 3" arm rest to enhance operator comfort.

+ Large viewing panel is set at an angle to reduce glare and enhance operator comfort.

CONFIGURATION OPTIONS:

« Work area differential pressure is negative with the option to exhaust to the outside.

*» Fits Atomlab and other dose calibrators.

ELECTRICAL:

+ High capacity motor/blower system with speed control to extend HEPA filter life.

+ Ten foot hospital grade power cord with molded grounded plug.

+ Sealed outlet in work area.

+ Separate lighted power ON/OFF indicator switches for blower and lighting.

+ High efficiency, standard sized fluorescent lights are externally mounted to minimize heat build-up and allow for replacement outside of containment.
+ Voltage = 115 Volt, 80 Hz (220v/50-60 Hz also available).

+ Amperage Rating = 15

« Running Amperage = 6

ANTECHAMBER:

+ Sealed two-door airlock maintains complete environmental separation between the work area and the laboratory.

+ HEPA filtered purge (air change) of airlock air eliminates cross contamination between the work area and the room during both material ingress and egress.

SHARPS AND WASTE DISPOSAL:

+ A sharps container is located under the isolator surrounded by individual 4" lead shields.
¢« Sharps tube is a straight 2 %" diameter tube to facilitate quick drop of the largest syringes.
« The tubes are provided with easily removable shielded seals/stoppers to maintain work area containment.

EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS:

+ 1/4" Standard Lead Shielding located in the back, sides, bottom, and front of the work area.

¢ All stainless steel construction both inside and out with a pharmaceutical grade #4 finish - lead is encapsulated between the interior and exterior stainless steel
panels.

+ Front viewing panel is top hinged and self supporting for easy access to the work area for cleaning and equipment ingress.
+ Straight sides and back maximize work area to accommodate the many types and shapes of equipment and dose calibrators.
¢ All corners in work area are seamless; antechamber and work surface are easily reached and cleaned.

+ Large 46mm thick leaded acrylic viewing window.

FEATURES:

http://www.germfree.com/product-lines/pharmacy-equipment/radiopharmacy-equipment/ra...  7/6/2015



Compounding Radiopharmacy Isolator Page 3 of 4

Dosa (ol is tazted and ¢b i wark nrfacs
Ergonomic piscament of sheilded Sturps avd maste tubey
Shsiniess Sioed removabde ark tray

Larga all-iow window i tead shiidad
A 2

b

that Ravea ¥° armront v 3n
inrovsad tange of movasrgat

Dupies Beaver Oulet {1234, 154

Sricchormie: s Spceted mdee
the dsclator to Mrasimine space /
Tiad #iM LE] -
S e /
draai Londibiing f/

iy

Hogit sssint islegrabad dand with 4 (O° baight austmant
Faur baavy dady boding casers poavilas mobiliey

AIRFLOW:

Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolators:
USP 797 Regulations for Compounded Sterile Preparations

USP 797 provided the first official and enforceable requirements for preparing CSPs -Compound Sterile
Preparations. USP 797 is the U.S. Pharmacopeia's (USP) Revised General Chapter <797> for
Pharmaceutical Compounding Sterile Preparations. According to the organization these requirements set
“practice standards to help ensure that compounded sterile preparations are of high quality”. Chapter <797>
fundamentally changed the way that facilities that prepare compounded sterile preparations approach their work.

USP 797 applies to the diverse range of facilities that prepare
Compounded Sterile Preparations

Chapter <797> applies to all facilities that prepare CSPs. This includes hospital and health-system pharmacies that
prepare compounded sterile preparations including main hospital pharmacy operations and satellite pharmacy
units, USP 797 also applies to clinics, hospital care units as well as other facilities that handle the compounding of
sterile preparations. As facilities change their procedures to meet USP 797 requirements, they are finding that
barrier isolators can provide an ideal alternative to a more costly cleanroom.

The Focd and Drug Administration states that a barrier isolator is: "a decontaminated unit supplied with HEPA
filtered air that provides uncompromised continuous isolation of its interior from the external environment, including
surrounding cleanroom air and personnel." Installing a Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolator provides
cleanroom conditions within a contained workspace. Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolators provide an 1SO
Class 5 (Class 100) environment for product preparation, with work occurring inside a closed, pressurized work
space, accessible only via a sealed gloves system.

General Standards for USP 797 Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolators:

Germfree's Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolators are an ideal solution for providing a clean work
environment in the pharmacy industry when compounding sterile preparations.

As there no true uniform industry standards for manufacturing isolators, there are significant design differences
among manufacturers. A well-designed isolator that will significantly reduce microbial contamination should meet a Room Alr ==l

range of minimal standards. Germfree’s Radiopharmacy Shielded Isolators meet or exceed these standards: Flitered Alr mmslps-
Contaminated Al sy |

Negatlve Configuration
Compounding Aseptic Contalnment Isolator {CACI)

« Unidirectional airflow showers the work zone with a continuous supply of filtered air that sweeps contaminants
out through the air exhaust system.

+ Negative air pressure maintains containment of hazardous substances within the isolator

» Easy to clean and disinfect inside and out

http://www.germfree.com/product-lines/pharmacy-equipment/radiopharmacy-equipment/ra... ~ 7/6/2015



Compounding Radiopharmacy Isolator Page 4 of 4

+ Pass-through system that Isolates the Interior of the unit from the room when materials are transferred in and out
+ Made of durable materials (stainless steel, glass, and high-performancs, scratch-resistant plastics)
* Includes height adjustors to make the work environment ergonomic

Print Page Request More Information

http://www.germfree.com/product-lines/pharmacy-equipment/radiopharmacy-equipment/ra...  7/6/2015



DIODEX

PAGE1/2

QUOTATION

Issue Date: 6/30/2015

Quote Number: 00003721

CUSTOMER CONTACT QUOTATION INFORMATION

| Expiration Date:  09/30/1
Wayne McGregor xpiration Date 5

Nuclear Medicine Department Questions: Ann Marie Alessi

Northern Inyo Hospital (631) 924-9000 Ext. 2230

150 Pioneer Ln

B|S.h0p, CA 93514 Excludes Shipping, please provide method of shipping

United States
| Phone: 760-873-2636

Email: wayne.mcgregor@nih.org Prepared by: Ann Marie Alessi

Quantity Part ID Description Unit Price Total Price
i 1 [ 190-215 | SHIELDED ISOLATOR : $46,900.00| $46,900.00
. Dimensions:

Overall Dimensions: 38' w x 32.5" d x 79" h (96 x 82 x 201 cm)
Designed to fit through standard door openings and elevators

Height Adjustment: 79" - 89" (200.7 x 226 cm)

Work Area Dimensions: 32.5" w x 25" d x 28" h (82".6 x 63.5 x 71 cm)
Viewing Window: 30" w x 23" h (76.2 x 58.4 cm), 1.8" (46 mm) thick
leaded acrylic

Construction: Stainless steel with a pharmaceutical grade finish

Lead Shielding: .25" (.64 cm) on back, sides, bottom and front
Fluorescent Lights: High efficiency; externally mounted to minimize
heat buildup

| Separate lighted power ON/OFF switch

Motor/Blower: High capacity with speed control to extend HEPA filters
life. Separate lighted power ON/OFF switch

Power: 115 VAC, 60 Hz (Optional 220 VAC, 50-60 Hz is available), 15
AMP line, running amperage = 6 AMP. Includes ten foot hospital
grade power cord with molded grounded plug. Sealed outlet in work
area.

Weight: 1,600 Ib (725.7 kg)

Warranty: Two years parts; one year labor

1 [ 190-219 TOTAL CUSTOMER CARE PLAN

The Total Customer Care Plan is an extended warranty plan that
ensures continued top performance of the Isolator after the factory
warranty has expired.

Includes: .

Set-up, installation (including dose calibrator) and up to four hours of
training

Factory certified in-service

Extends warranty to three years parts including labor

Isolator training DVD

Stainless Steel Mop handle

Twenty Mop heads

One year supply of isolator sleeves (two pairs)

Includes a 7% discount on the Isolator

Biodex Medical Systems, Inc.

$1,995.00 $1,995.00

Subtotal  $48,895.00
Discount $3,283.00

Grand Total $45,612.00




BIODEX QUOTATION

Issue Date:  6/30/2015

PAGE2/2 Quote Number: 00003721
CUSTOMER APPROVAL AS QUOTED:

Signature: Date:

Print Name: Title;

TERMS: DELIVERY INFORMATION

INSTITUTIONS (with approved Credit): Net 30 Days

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS: Full payment required by

Visa, MasterCard, Discover or American Express prior to shipment
ALL CusTOMERS: Subject to credit approval Inside Delivery? [[]Yes [JNo
FREIGHT: FOB Shirley, NY (customer pays freight) Partial Shipment OK? [7]Yes []No
Plus sales tax where applicable : — ———

Must arrive by: / /

Loading Dock? [[]Yes []No

We hereby certify this Quotation is true and correct, valid for 60 days and is renewable upon written request (which may reflect price SHALIE 5]
change). All prices and costs indicated herein are paid by the customer to Biodex Medical Systems, Inc. with NO allowable deductions
or assessments for banking or other charges. Any adjustment to shipping charge estimation will be paid by the customer.

Biodex Medical Systems, Inc.
20 Ramsey Road, Shirley, NY, USA, 11967-4704, Phone: 001-631-924-9000, Email: in foabiodex.com, www.biodex.com



retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$79,350 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as
"contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by
Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Biling and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

&) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

2 County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.

4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4, WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. It is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange histher own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 2 040115



5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement. Further, during the term of this
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional
licensesor certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and
maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County, upon
execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor and
County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.
A Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or

safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 3 040115



8. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of Inyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be
considered an employee of Contractor. It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

1. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resuilting from, or in connection with, the performance of
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to
defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or
alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss
of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or
other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or
omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 4 040115



To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

12, RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 5 040115



County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-four (24) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVERABILITY.

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 6 040115



22, FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-four
(24) (Amendment).

23. ATTORNEY'S FEES.

If either of the parties hereto brings an action or proceeding against the other, including, but not
limited to, an action to enforce or declare the cancellation, termination, or revision of the Agreement, the
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to receive from the other party all reasonable
attorney's fees and costs incurred in connection therewith.

24, AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

25. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of Inyo

First 5 Inyo County Department
568 W. Line Street Street

Bishop, CA 93514 City and State
Contractor:

Northern Inyo Hospital Name

150 Pioneer Lane Street

Bishop, CA 93514 City and State

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

i i

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 7 040115



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Northern Inyo Hospital
FOR THE PROVISION OF Childbirth Education and Breastfeeding Support SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
THIS DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR
By: By:

Signature
Dated:

Print or Type Name

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 8 040115



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Northern Inyo Hospital

TERM:

FROM: July 1, 2015 TO: June 30, 2018

SCOPE OF WORK:

The Contractor shall provide birthing classes, breastfeeding support groups, and related services as detailed in the accompanying Scope of
Work attachment incorporated into this contract (pages 8,9, 10 & 11 of the Northern Inyo Hospital's Early Child Health Proposal for 2015-1 8).
Contractor shall complete the tasks listed in this plan no later than June 30, 201 8, and shall provide requested fiscal reports and evaluation
materials listed herein at quarterly intervals to the First 5 Inyo Commission.

All publicity materials for the public produced pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted to First 5 Inyo County for approval and shall
include “Funded by First 5 Inyo County” and or the Fitst 5 Inyo County logo. The Contractor shall also coordinate with First 5 Inyo to make
sure free advertising venues such as community calendar announcements in local newspapers and radio stations are utilized to promote the
regularly scheduled birth classes and breastfeeding support group meetings, and that flyers for related services are available to new and
expectant parents in NEST or new parent kits.

The major services this contract addresses and the ways they are to be measured include:
1. Designation of a Maternal Family Educator and selection of 3 employees to be certified in childbirth education

-total # of staff prepared to deliver childbirth support

2. Delivery of monthly birthing classes, hospital tours, and NEST appointments
-total # of parents served in birthing classes and NEST (copies of attendance sheets)
-total # of parents who received SIDS prevention and shaken-baby prevention resources
-post-surveys that detail what clients learned and how their families benefited from these classes and resources

3. Delivery of a weekly breastfeeding support group
-total # of parents served in breastfeeding support group (copies of attendance sheets)
-number of parents who say this group helped prepare to breastfeed before birth
-number of parents who say this group helped them continue to breastfeed after return to work
-number of parents who say the support group helped them to breastfeed longer than without advice and encouragement
-number of participants sharing local breastfeeding barriers for future amelioration

4, Progress toward Baby Friendly Hospital designation by 2018 will be measured by achievement of the following milestones:
2015-16 staff training and continued data collection

2016-17 maternity care quality improvement plan and BFH readiness interview
2017-18 on-site assessment by BFH certification board and BFH designation awarded

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 9 040115



V/

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

People you know, caring for Ppeople you love,

Due to the current NEST program and its work on surveying mothers, the respondent rate
numbers are readily available of those participating in the phone surveys. The NEST believes that
by modifying its data collection techniques by moving to an anonymous, online survey will address
the current barrier it is facing gathering data from delivering mothers. At each program evaluation
point the number of survey respondents will be compared against the deliveries during that

period.

Lastly, due to its participation in the mPINC survey and with the potential designation as a Baby
Friendly Hospital, NIH will know that is has fulfilled the Surgeon General’s Call to Action to Support
Breastfeeding, succeeded in implementing the BFHI’s 10 Steps Successful Breastfeeding, and is

providing the gold standard in maternity care.

Scope of Work

ﬁesignate NIH staff eligible for grant funded Maternal June 2015
Family Educator position
Initiation of .3FTE position- Maternal Family Educator July 2015
Selection of 3 employees to take childbirth education July 2015
certification
Move into Dissemination Phase of Baby Friendly July 2015

Hospital Initiative (BFHI):

> Staff Training on implementing the 10 Steps to
Successful Breastfeed

> Data Collection on current maternity care

Marketing/promotion for Childbirth classes

July 2015 and ongoing through life of
project

Participates in World Breastfeeding Month

August 2015

Development of Survey Monkey for data collection

August 2015

Working with partners on developing curriculum for
child birth classes

August 2015

Initiation of Survey Monkey for data collection. Survey
will be sent out monthly according to if it is the 1 month,
3 month, or 6 month follow-up. Review of data
completed monthly.

September 2015

Initiation of Childbirth classes to be held monthly,
Weeknight Sessions:
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

September 2015

NIH staff enrolled in Childbirth Education Certification
Program

September 2015

First 5 Inyo County Grant Proposal: Beyond NEST

Page | 8




V/

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

People you know, caring for people you love.

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | October 2015
results and data will be shared
Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: October 2015
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day
Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: November 2015
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening
Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: December 2015
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day
Initiation of breastfeeding support group will be January 2016
available on a weekly basis at set days/times
Prepare for staff training in BFHI January 2016
Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | January 2016
results and data will be shared
Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: January 2016
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening
California Breastfeeding Coalition Conference February 2016
attendance- 2-3 attendees
Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: February 2016
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day
Program evaluation based on data analysis of previous March 2016
six months
Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: March 2016
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening
Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | April 2016
results and data will be shared
Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: April 2016
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day
Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: May 2016
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening
Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: June 2016
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day
Enter into the Designation Phase of BFHI: July 2016
> Implementation of NIH’s Quality Improvement on

maternity care
» Conducting a readiness interview with BFHI

assessors
» On-site assessment from BFHI assessors
» Baby-Friendly Designation
Anticipated new Electronic Health Record for Perinatal July 2016

First 5 Inyo County Grant Proposal: Beyond NEST

Page | 9




Y/

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

People you know, caring for people you love.

to better track data collection

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where July 2016

results and data will be shared

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: July 2016
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: August 2016
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Program evaluation based on data analysis of previous September 2016
six months

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: September 2016
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | October 2016
results and data will be shared

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: October 2016
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: November 2016

Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions:
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

December 2016

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | January 2017
results and data will be shared

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: January 2017
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: February 2017
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Program evaluation based on data analysis of previous March 2017
six months

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: March 2017
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | April 2017
results and data will be shared

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: April 2017
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: May 2017
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: June 2017
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Anticipated BFHI Designation July 2017
Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | July 2017

First 5 Inyo County Grant Proposal: Beyond NEST

Page | 10




V/

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL

People you know, caring for people you love.

results and data will be shared

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions:
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

July 2017

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions:
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

August 2017

Program evaluation based on data analysis of previous September 2017
six months '

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: September 2017
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | October 2017
results and data will be shared

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: October 2017
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: November 2017
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: December 2017
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | January 2018
results and data will be shared

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: January 2018
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: February 2018
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Program evaluation based on data analysis of previous March 2018

six months

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: March 2018
Tues/Thurs for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Participation in quarterly First 5 Partner meeting where | April 2018
results and data will be shared

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: April 2018
Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

Childbirth classes — Weeknight Sessions: May 2018
Mon/Weds for two consecutive weeks in the evening

Childbirth class — Weekend Sessions: June 2018

Saturday for two consecutive weeks during the day

First 5 Inyo County Grant Proposal: Beyond NEST

Page | 11




ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Northern Inyo Hospital

FOR THE PROVISION oF “hildbirth Education and Breastfeeding Support SERVICES

TERM:

EROM: July 1, 2015 T0O: June 30,2018

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt of semester invoices, the County agrees to compensate the Contractor for expenditures
incurred from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018 in an amount not to exceed $79,350.

Actual program and equipment costs are to be invoiced to First 5 Inyo County after service delivery on a semester basis on the last day of
each month listed below, and indirect costs are not exceed 15% of the total contracted amount. Expenditures should not deviate from the
proposed budget categories by more than $2,500 without the express written permission of the First 5 Inyo Commission.

Notwithstanding paragraph 3 E. 8illing and Payment, semester invoices with attached expenditure sheets, fiscal receipts, and related
evaluation materials should be received by First 5 Inyo no later than 15 days after the due dates listed below.

in the event that invoices or evaluation materials are not forthcoming in that time period, the Commission retains the right to withhold
payment until satisfactory receipt and review of those materials has taken place. Habitual tardiness over 2 or more semesters in provision of
such agreed invoices, fiscal documentation, or evaluation data is cause for the First 5 Inyo Commission to review this contract for reduction

or cancelation.

Due Date Late After
January 1, 2016 January 15,2016
July 1,2016 July 15,2016
January 1,2017 January 15,2017
July 1,2017 July 15,2017
January 1,2018 January 15,2018
July1,2018 July 15,2018

County of inyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(Independent Contractor)
Page 10 040115



0s8°ze

STv10L

000°L

suonowold/bunsyiep

000°)

SNO3NVTI3OSIN

13AVHL

009

SASAING 10} SOAIIUBOU|

00S'¥

saddng ¥y uonuanalq

05Z'C

saljddng daid yuig

{0s€L

S3ANddNS

00S ¥

Buiuies) 10 YuIgpIyo

000’}

U} Jels mau |H4g duuo

0009

Bulutel) yejs |HQ S1sUO

005°LL

NOILYQNa3

000°€L

uomisod 314 € 40 %05

| euenoy| Jewenpg| sepenpz|  Jswend L|000'CL

331S 139angd

I8

1INNOSH3d

vV

Jueas) Buipassjisealg @ yuig 91-5102 HIN




STV10L

uoneubisap H4d

suonowoid;buneyiel

SNO3NVT1IISIN

_ 13AWdL

sASAING 10} S2AIUBDU|

sa|iddng ¥y uouarald

sa|iddng daid yuig

__S3InddnNs

Buiutel} yels |H4g suluo

NOILYONAd3

L st .. I 000l uomisod 314 € 0 %05

| 1suenp p| 0z|  ewEno 1|000'el | JINNOSY3d
SIv.1iOL 139dng R ENED)

Juel9 Buipasyyseaig @ yuig LL-910Z HIN




STv101

suonowosd;bunaiep

SNOIANVITIISIN

J3AVHL

sABAINgG 10} SOAIJUSDU|

sayddng Iy uonuanald

seljddng daid yuig

S3Nddns

Buiulel} yeis |Hg sulluo

NOILYONAd3s

SV10l

“13)enp |

uonisod 314 € 10 %05

[ (00"C |
jspenp €| JeLEnD z|  JekEnd 4[000°E L
13oang

_1INNOSHId
i\4-ELED)

juess Buipssyisealg @ ynig 81-210Z HIN




Specifications 2
Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis for badily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no
employees)
1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant’s
profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Additional Insured Status

1. The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's
insurance (at least as broad as 1ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
20 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant’s insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be

canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation
Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses
within the retention.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less

than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date,
the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage

Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.
Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on

the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



Northern Inyo Hospital
Fiscal Year 2015-16 Budget Income Statement

Adjusted

Projected Management  Administration

Budget Budget Budget
Unrestricted Revenues, Gains & Other Support
inpatient Service Revenue
Inpatient Routine Services $9,587,952 $9,587,952 $9,587,952
Inpatient Ancillary Services $32,579,304  $32,579,292  $32,579,292
Total Inpatient Service Revenue $42,167,256  $42,167,244  $42,167,244
Outpatient Service Revenue 583,300,424  $84,132,780  $84,132,780
Gross Patient Service Revenue $125,467,680 $126,300,024 $126,300,024
Less Deductions from Revenue
Patient Service Revenue Deductions $2,929,776 $2,929,776 $2,929,776
Contractual Adjustments $49,936,032  $49,936,032  $49,936,032
Prior Period Adjustments ($110,004) ($110,004) (5110,004)
Total Deductions from Patient Service Revenue $52,755,804  $52,755,804  $52,755,804
Net Patient Service Revenue $72,711,876  $73,544,220  $73,544,220
Other revenue $492,984 $492,984 $492,984
Total Other Revenue $492,984 $492,984 $492,984
Expenses:
Salaries and Wages $22,122,612 $24,416,772 $24,416,772
Employee Benefits $17,779,836 $19,442,952 $15,870,902
Professional Fees $6,188,064 $7,063,488 $7,063,488
Supplies $6,201,312  $6,165,864  $6,165,864
Purchased Services $3,675,888 $4,091,136 $3,675,888
Depreciation $4,831,164 $5,110,188 $5,110,188
Bad Debts $2,402,316 $2,402,316 $2,402,316
Other Expense $3,964,644 $4,125,192 $3,964,644
Total Expenses $67,165,836 $72,817,908 $68,670,062
Operating Income (Loss) $6,039,024 $1,219,296 $5,367,142
Other Income:
District Tax Receipts $532,992 $532,992 $532,992
Partnership Investment Incomce $0 $0 $0
Grants and Other Contributions Unrestricted $36,564 $36,564 $36,564
Interest Income $165,960 $165,960 $165,960
Transfers from Restricted Funds for Operating Exp $1,007,748 $1,007,748 $1,007,748
Interest Expense ($3,427,872)  ($3,427,872)  ($3,427,872)
Other Non-Operating Income 55,268 $5,268 $5,268
Net Medical Office Activity ($4,682,328) ($3,792,588) ($3,792,588)
340B Net Activity $370,620 $370,620 $370,620
Non-Operating Income/Loss (85,991,048)  ($5,101,308)  ($5,101,308)
Net Income/Loss $47,976 ($3,882,012) $265,834
Total Bond Debt for Coverage Ratios 4,509,117.61 4,509,117.61 4,509,117.61
Net Income/Loss Plus Depreciation & Interest Expense $8,307,012 $4,656,048 $8,803,894
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.84 1.03 1.95

Debt Service Coverage as outlined in 2010 and 2013 Revenue Bonds require that the district
has a debt service coverate ratio of 1.50 to 1 (can be 1:25 to 1 with 75 days cash on hand)
Debt Service Coverage is calculated as Net Income (Profit/Loss) from the Income Statement
PLUS Depreciation & Interest Expense added back divided by the Current Interest & Principle

Benefits at 65%

Held to projected

Held to projected



Northern Inyo Hospital Current

Debt Information (Long-Term) FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2016

Fiscal Year Ending 2016 Original Remaining Principle Interest End Debt

Lender Description Issue Principle Issue Principle Payments Payments Date Payments

GE Government Financing

#001 Original Radiology Equipment S 3,348,470.10 S - S - S < 12/1/2013 § =

GE Financing #002 Phillips Monitoring Equipment S 700,738.87 S 199,089.82 $ 143,345.83 $ 9,700.25 10/1/2017 S 153,046.08

GE Financing #003 2013 Ultrasound Equipment S 290,000.00 S 112,462.47 $ 58,306.79 $ 5,163.01 4/1/2018 S 63,469.80

Bank of the West-Trinity 002 McKesson Paragon $ 1,019,846.36 S 297,030.17 $ 240,788.16 $ 22,088.04 8/1/2017 $ 262,876.20

Bank of the West-Trinity 001 McKesson Paragon S 1,819,762.97 § 380,893.06 $ 436,567.39 $ 31,081.35 4/1/2017 $ 467,648.74

Turner Logistics-Hospital

Bank of the West-Taycor equipment Steris S 612,753.56 S 100,632.12 $ 128,948.85 $ 7,775.43 3/16/2017 S 136,724.28
$ 7,791,571.86 S5 1,090,107.64 $ 1,007,957.02 S 75,808.08 $ 1,083,765.10

Revenue Bonds

2010 NiH Revenue Bonds Building Costs $ 11,600,000.00 $ 8,780,000.00 $ 620,000.00 $ 557,937.50 12/1/2025 $ 1,177,937.50

2013 NIH Revenue Bonds Building Costs $ 11,335,000.00 $ 10,415,000.00 $ 310,000.00 $ 465,950.01 12/1/2029 $ 775,950.01
$ 22,935,000.00 $ 19,195,000.00 $ 930,000.00 S 1,023,887.51 $ 1,953,887.51

Total Long-Term Debt $ 30,726,571.86 S 20,285,107.64 S 1,937,957.02 $ 1,099,695.59 S 3,037,652.61

Additional new issues

Line of Credits

Oak Valley/Eastern Sierra

Community Bank Annex Building Mortage $  600,000.00 S - $ - 4/1/2017 $ -

Operating Leases Monthly Lease

Turner Logistics-Skytron
Celtic Leasing Equipment S 1,013,111.36 S 36,277.00 S 435,324.00

Total Cash to cover
Principal, Interest & Capital
Lease Payments for 2016

General Obligation Bonds
2005 NIH GO Bond

2009 NIH GO Bond
Total Debt-General

Obligation Bonds

Building Costs
Building Costs

Total Principal & Interest
Expense for 2016

$ 15,035,000.00 $ 13,840,000.00
$ 14,464,947.15 $ 13,829,947.15

$ 195,000.00
$ 265,000.00

$ 3,472,976.61

723,640.00
287,825.00

7/1/2035 §$
10/1/2038 $

918,640.00
552,825.00

v n

$ 29,499,947.15 $ 27,669,947.15

S 460,000.00

$ 1,011,465.00 $ 1,471,465.00

$ 2,397,957.02

$ 2,111,160.59

Total Bond Debt for
Coverage Ratios

Revenue & General Obligation
Bonds

$ 2,397,957.02

$ 2,111,160.59 S 4,509,117.61

Interest %

3.58%

~4.857%

4.995%

4.548%

5% to 6.375%
3.875% to 5%

Paid Off 8/4/14

3.5% to 4.365%

5.12%
6.25% Average



Milliman Client Report

Northern Inyo County
Local Hospital District Retirement Plan

Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Prepared by:

Richard A. Wright
FSA, MAAA

Milliman, Inc.

650 California Street, 17th Floor
San Francisco, California 94108

Tel 415 403 1333 Fax 415 403 1334
milliman.com

June 16, 2015




. ] ]
M I I I I m a n 650 California Street, 17th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108-2702
USA

Tel +1 415403 1333
Fax +1415 403 1334

milliman.com

June 16, 2015

Northern Inyo Hospital
150 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, California 93514-2599

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

As part of our engagement with the Hospital, we have made an actuarial valuation of the Northern Inyo
County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan for the plan year beginning January 1, 2015. The
purpose of this valuation is to determine the recommended contribution pursuant to the Hospital's
funding policy.

In preparing this report, we have relied without audit on information (some oral and some in writing)
provided by New York Life Insurance Company and the Hospital. This information includes, but is not
limited to, financial information, census data, and plan provisions. We found this information to be
reasonably consistent and comparable with information used for other purposes. The valuation results
depend on the integrity of this information. If any of this information is inaccurate or incomplete the
results may be different and the calculations may need to be revised.

All costs, liabilities, rates of interest, and other factors for the Fund have been determined on the
basis of actuarial assumptions and methods which are individually reasonable (taking into account
the experience of the Plan and reasonable expectations); and which, in combination, offer our best
estimate of anticipated experience affecting the Fund.

This valuation report is only an estimate of the Plan’s financial condition as of a single date. It can
neither predict the Plan’s future condition nor guarantee future financial soundness. Actuarial
valuations do not affect the ultimate cost of Plan benefits, only the timing of Plan contributions.
While the valuation is based on an array of individually reasonable assumptions, other assumption
sets may also be reasonable and valuation results based on those assumptions would be different.
No one set of assumptions is uniquely correct. Determining results using alternative assumptions is
outside the scope of our engagement.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in
this report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the
economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions;
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution
requirements based on the Fund's funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law.
Due to the limited scope of our assignment, we did not perform an analysis of the potential range of

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide



Northern Inyo Hospital
June 16, 2015
Page 2

future measurements. The Hospital has the final decision regarding the appropriateness of the
assumptions and actuarial cost methods.

The calculations reported herein have been made in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. The results of this valuation are applicable only for the current year and are
intended to be used only by the plan sponsor for the specific purposes described herein.

Milliman’s work is prepared solely for the internal business use of the Hospital. To the extent that
Milliman's work is not subject to disclosure under applicable public records laws, Milliman’s work may
not be provided to third parties without Milliman's prior written consent. Milliman does not intend to
benefit or create a legal duty to any third party recipient of its work product. Milliman’s consent to
release its work product to any third party may be conditioned on the third party signing a Release,
subject to the following exception(s):

(&) The Hospital may provide a copy of Milliman's work, in its entirety, to the Hospital's
professional service advisors who are subject to a duty of confidentiality and who agree to not
use Milliman’s work for any purpose other than to benefit the Hospital.

(b) The Hospital may provide a copy of Milliman’s work, in its entirety, to other governmental
entities, as required by law.

No third party recipient of Milliman's work product should rely upon Milliman's work product. Such
recipients should engage qualified professionals for advice appropriate to their own specific needs.

The consultants who worked on this assignment are pension actuaries. Milliman’s advice is not
intended to be a substitute for qualified legal or accounting counsel.

On the basis of the foregoing, we hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this report
is complete and accurate and has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted actuarial
principles and practices which are consistent with the applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice of the
American Academy of Actuaries. The undersigned is a member of the American Academy of
Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render
the actuarial opinion contained herein.

Sincerely,

PL0):

Richard A. Wfight, FSA, MAAA
Consulting Actuary

RAW:km
n:\nih\corn2015\nih2015v_e.docx

Milliman



Milliman Client Report TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Page

VALUATION SUMMARY

a0 To {5 Tox 1 o] o PR PPRRRR 1
[ 10| 1T | 1 TP PPERRR 1
RESUIES OF VAIUBLION ....uvviiiiieiiiiiiieee ettt e e e e s s ee e e e e e e e e ennnes 2
MONEhLY CONTIDULIONS ...viiiiiie i e s e e e e e e s s s s raeeeeeeeeeens 3
Il FINANCIAL EXHIBITS
Exhibit 1. SUMMArY Of Plan ASSEIS.....cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et 4
Exhibit 2. Summary of Changes in Plan ASSEtS .........coccvviiieiiie e 5
Exhibit 3. Historical Returns on Plan ASSELS ........oooocuiiiiiiiiei e 6
Exhibit 4. Present Value of Accumulated Plan BenefitS..........cccccvveeeeeeiiiiiciiiieennenn, 7
Exhibit 5. Changes in Accumulated Plan Benefits .........ccceeeveeeiiiiiiiieeeeee i, 8
Il DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION
Exhibit 6. Development of Normal COSt.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9
Exhibit 7. Actuarial Accrued Liability ...........evviieeriiiiiee e 10
Exhibit 8. Full FuNding Limitation .........ooiiieviiiieie e 11
Exhibit 9. Recommended COoNtriBULION ..........oivieiiiiiiiiiieeee e 12

Y APPENDICES

Appendix A.  Summary of Pension Plan ... 13
Appendix B.  Actuarial Cost Method and ASSUMPLIONS..........ccvveeiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 14
Appendix C.  Summary of Participant Data...........cccccveeeviiiiiiiiiieee e 15
Appendix D.  Reconciliation of Participant Data..............ccccuvviieeieeeiiiniiieeeee e 16
Appendix E.  GloSSary Of KEY TEIMNS......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e et e e e e e s e s sirreeee e e e e e s snesneees 17

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION I. VALUATION SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

This report sets forth the results of our valuation of the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District
Retirement Plan, as of January 1, 2015. In Section Il we furnish certain financial statements and
actuarial exhibits of the Fund for the 2014 plan year. Section lll presents the determination of the
contribution requirement for the 2015 plan year.

A summary of the Plan is set forth in Appendix A, and the actuarial assumptions and cost method
used in determining the costs and liabilities are described in Appendix B. The membership data is
shown in Appendix C.

HIGHLIGHTS
The Plan was closed to new entrants effective January 1, 2013.

We have changed the actuarial cost method from the projected unit credit method to the entry age
normal cost method, for purposes of compliance with GASB 67 and 68. This change has been made
retroactive back to the prior valuation date of January 1, 2014, and thus the prior year's valuation
results shown in this report reflect this method change, which resulted in an increase of $5,214,952 in
the actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2014. This change had no effect on the determination of
the recommended contribution.

For this year’s valuation, we have lowered the salary increase assumption from 5.0% to 4.0% to reflect
lower long-term inflation expectations. This assumption change resulted in a decrease of $1,677,930
in the actuarial accrued liability as of January, 1, 2015 and a decrease of $72,000 in the amount of the
recommended contribution for 2015.

The entry age normal cost decreased from $2,603,182 in last year's valuation to $2,153,703 this year,
due primarily to the decrease in covered payroll and the above-mentioned assumption change. The
normal cost as a percentage of payroll decreased from 13.4% last year to 12.2%.

The investment performance of the fund showed a return of 5.2% for 2014. The average investment
return over the last 20 years has been 6.4%.

The Full Funding Limitation is a measure of the funded status of the plan as of the valuation date. It
is normally used to determine minimum required contributions and the maximum tax-deductible limit
for taxable entities. For the 2015 Plan Year, the Full Funding Limitation would limit contributions to
the Plan to $19,807,023 for the year.

The recommended contribution is based on a target funding level of 125% of the Accumulated Benefit
Obligation (ABO). The plan’s current funding level is 91.9% of ABO. The deficit under 125% is being
amortized over a 20-year period beginning on January 1, 2012. The applicable amortization amount
for the year is added to the current year's ABO normal cost to determine the recommended
contribution for the year.

For the 2015 plan year, the recommended contribution is $3,900,000, or $325,000 per month if paid in
12 monthly installments during the 7/1/2015-6/30/2016 fiscal year.

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION I. VALUATION SUMMARY

RESULTS OF VALUATION

The following table summarizes the principal valuation results and compares them with the prior plan
year.

Number of Participants

January 1, 2015

January 1, 2014

Active — Fully vested 142 145
— Partially vested 89 99
— Nonvested 29 _44
— Total 260 288
Part-time employees with accrued benefits 6 8
Disabled employees with accrued benefits 1 1
Terminated vested 58 53
Retired _ 0 _ 0
Total participants 325 350
Participant Payroll under NRA $ 17,664,833 $ 19,429,331
Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 49,116,826 $ 53,757,951
Funding Target — 125% of Accumulated
Benefit Obligation (ABO) $ 44,394,099 $ 45,957,220
Actuarial Assets $ 32,628,625 $ 35,906,226
Normal Cost at Beginning of Year $ 2,153,703 $ 2,603,182
As a percentage of applicable payroll 12.2% 13.4%
Full Funding Limitation $ 19,807,023 $ 21,733,339
Recommended Contribution $ 3,900,000 $ 4,320,000
As a percentage of applicable payroll 22.1% 22.2%
Investment Return
Current annual yield 5.2% 2.8%
Average annual yield for last 5 years 5.0% 5.1%

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION I. VALUATION SUMMARY

MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS

To satisfy the funding requirement for the 2015 plan year, we recommend the schedule of
contributions shown below. Contributions for a fiscal year (July 1 to June 30) are being applied to the
plan year (January 1 to December 31) ending within the fiscal year.

Approximate Contributions for the
Date of Contribution 2015 Plan Year

07/15/2015 $ 325,000
08/15/2015 325,000
09/15/2015 325,000
10/15/2015 325,000
11/15/2015 325,000
12/15/2015 325,000
01/15/2016 325,000
02/15/2016 325,000
03/15/2016 325,000
04/15/2016 325,000
05/15/2016 325,000
06/15/2016 325,000

Total $ 3,900,000

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION II. FINANCIAL EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 1. SUMMARY OF PLAN ASSETS

The valuation assets as of January 1, 2015, are the sum of the accrued balances in the contractual
Fixed Dollar Account (GA-928) and the Indexed Bond Fund (account #11344) as of December 31,
2014, maintained by New York Life, plus any accrued but unpaid contributions and minus any
distributions payable. The balance in the contractual Pension Account is allocated to retired
participants and beneficiaries and is excluded from the valuation. Development of the assets is as

follows:

Plan Assets

Fixed Dollar Account (GA-928)
Indexed Bond Fund (Acc. #11344)
Total

Accrued Contributions
Actuarial Assets
Asset Allocation
Fixed Dollar Account
Indexed Bond Fund

Accrued Contributions

Total

January 1, 2015

$

10,529,895

$

19,938,730

30,468,625

2,160,000

$

32,628,625

61.1%
32.3%
6.6%

100.0%

January 1, 2014

$ 23,872,677
9,957,549

$ 33,830,226
2,076,000

$ 35,906,226
66.5%
27.7%

5.8%

100.0%

Note: We have not audited the fund's assets shown above. We have relied on the information furnished

by New York Life Insurance Company.

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION II. FINANCIAL EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 2. SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN PLAN ASSETS

Plan assets increase or decrease each year due to employer contributions, investment income,
benefit payments to retiring participants, plan expenses paid by the trust fund, and any realized and
unrealized gains and losses from investments.

PLAN YEAR ENDING

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Beginning Balance $ 33,830,226 $ 35,494,273
Additions:

Employer contributions 4,236,000 4,344,000
Investment income 1,774,807 1,000,205
Experience adjustment 0 0
Total 6,010,807 5,344,205

Subtractions:

Benefit payments (9,172,910) (6,625,553)
Expenses & related charges (50,304) (48,022)
Experience adjustment (149,194) (334,677)
Total (9,372,408) (7,008,252)
Ending Balance $ 30,468,625 $ 33,830,226
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 5

Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION IIl. FINANCIAL EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 3. HISTORICAL RETURNS ON PLAN ASSETS

The following table shows the historical return on plan assets since 1995:

Plan Year Return

2014 5.21%
2013 2.82%
2012 4.93%
2011 5.94%
2010 5.88%
2009 5.97%
2008 6.53%
2007 6.71%
2006 5.57%
2005 5.32%
2004 5.84%
2003 5.41%
2002 8.18%
2001 7.33%
2000 8.48%
1999 4.42%
1998 7.90%
1997 8.64%
1996 5.70%
1995 12.16%
Average for last 5 years 4.95%
Average for last 10 years 5.48%
Average for last 20 years 6.43%

The actuarial valuation rate for the 2015 plan year is 6.25%.

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION II.

FINANCIAL EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 4. PRESENT VALUE OF ACCUMULATED PLAN BENEFITS (ABO)

The present value of accumulated plan benefits (also known as the Accumulated Benefit Obligation
or ABO) is the value of benefits that have been accrued to date.

As of

January 1, 2015

As of

January 1, 2014

Vested Benefits
Active participants

Part-time participants with accrued benefits

Terminated vested participants
Disabled participants

Participants currently receiving payments

Total

Nonvested Benefits

Total

Valuation Assets

Funding Ratio

$

29,437,819
335,859
4,435,196
24,511

0

$ 34,233,385

1,281,894

$ 35,515,279

$ 32,628,625

91.9%

$

$

31,849,900
521,558
2,917,368
22,453

0
35,311,279

1,454,497

$

$

36,765,776

35,906,226

97.7%

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION IIl. FINANCIAL EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 5. CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED PLAN BENEFITS

The changes in the present value of accumulated plan benefits for the last two plan years are
summarized below.

PLAN YEAR ENDING

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Beginning of Year $ 36,765,776 $ 35,334,265
Benefits accumulated and actuarial experience 5,624,552 4,321,273
Increase for interest due to the decrease in

the discount period 2,297,861 2,385,063
Plan amendment 0 0
Change in actuarial assumptions 0 1,350,728
Benefits paid (9,172,910) (6,625,553)
End of Year $ 35,515,279 $ 36,765,776

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION III.

DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION

EXHIBIT 6. DEVELOPMENT OF NORMAL COST

The normal cost is calculated according to the actuarial cost method. Under the entry age normal
cost method, the normal cost is calculated as the sum of the normal costs for individual participants.
A participant’'s normal cost is calculated by allocating the value of future benefits as a level
percentage of earnings over the participant’s working lifetime. The normal cost is as follows:

PLAN YEAR BEGINNING

January 1, 2014

Normal cost as of beginning of plan year

Estimated payroll for plan participants

Normal Cost as % of payroll

Normal cost as of end of plan year

January 1, 2015

$

2,153,703 $ 2,603,182
17,664,833 19,429,331
12.2% 13.4%
2,288,309 2,765,881

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION IIl. DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION

EXHIBIT 7. ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY

The actuarial accrued liability has been calculated using the entry age normal actuarial cost method,
and is equal to the present value of benefits for all members less the present value of future normal
costs for active employees. Any actuarial liability in excess of the plan’s assets is called an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability.

As of As of

January 1, 2015 January 1, 2014

Present Value of Benefits

Active participants $ 60,203,823 $ 71,160,602
Part-time participants with accrued benefits 335,859 521,558
Terminated vested participants 4,435,196 2,917,368
Disabled participants 24,511 22,453
Participants currently receiving payments 0 0
Total PVB $ 64,999,389 $ 74,621,981

Present Value of Future Normal Cost
Active employees $ 15,882,563 $ 20,864,030

Actuarial Accrued Liability

Active participants 44,321,260 50,296,572
Part-time participants with accrued benefits 335,859 521,558
Terminated vested participants 4,435,196 2,917,368
Disabled participants 24,511 22,453
Participants currently receiving payments 0 0
Total actuarial accrued liability $ 49,116,826 $ 53,757,951
Actuarial Assets $ 32,628,625 $ 35,906,226
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 16,488,201 $ 17,851,725
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 10

Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION Ill. DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION

EXHIBIT 8. FULL FUNDING LIMITATION

The full funding limitation is defined by the Internal Revenue Code and limits minimum required and
maximum deductible contributions of well-funded retirement plans.

PLAN YEAR ENDING

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 49,116,826 $ 53,757,951
Normal Cost 2,153,703 2,603,182
Total $ 51,270,529 $ 56,361,133
Actuarial assets $ 32,628,625 $ 35,906,226
Full Funding Limitation, beginning of year $ 18,641,904 $ 20,454,907
Interest 1,165,119 1,278,432
Full Funding Limitation, end of year $ 19,807,023 $ 21,733,339
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 11

Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION Ill. DETERMINATION OF CONTRIBUTION

EXHIBIT 9. RECOMMENDED CONTRIBUTION

The recommended contribution targets a funding level of 125% of the Accumulated Benefit
Obligation (ABO). Since the plan is currently funded less than 125% of ABO, the deficit is amortized
over a 20 year period starting from January 1, 2012 (i.e. 17 years remaining as of January 1, 2015).
The recommended contribution is reduced, if necessary, to the Full Funding Limitation.

PLAN YEAR ENDING

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Target Surplus
Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO) $ 35,515,279 $ 36,765,776
Funding Target % x 125% x 125%
Funding Target (125% of ABO) $ 44,394,099 $ 45,957,220
Actuarial Assets 32,628,625 35,906,226
Excess / (deficit) $ (11,765,474) $ (10,050,994)
Recommended Contribution
ABO Normal Cost $ 2,589,355 $ 3,170,902
Amortization of (Excess) / Deficit 1,075,982 890,144
Total as of beginning of year $ 3,665,337 $ 4,061,046
Interest 229,084 253,815
Total as of end of year $ 3,894,421 $ 4,314,861
Full Funding Limitation, end of year $ 19,807,023 $ 21,733,339
Recommended Contribution $ 3,894,421 $ 4,314,861

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman

12



Milliman Client Report

SECTION IV. APPENDICES

APPENDIX A. SUMMARY OF PENSION PLAN

The following paragraphs are only a brief summary of the more important provisions of the plan. In
the event there are any inconsistencies between statements contained in this Appendix and the plan
document, the provisions of the plan document shall control.

Effective Date: March 1, 1975; last restatement January 1, 2009; amended January 1, 2008; and
amended January 1, 2013.

Plan Eligibility: An employee becomes a participant of the plan on the earliest January 1 or July 1
following the later of attainment of age 21 and completion of 1 year of service. The Plan was closed
to new entrants effective January 1, 2013.

Vesting: 50% vesting after 5 years of Credited Service increasing 10% per year until 100% vested
after 10 years of service. Active participants automatically become 100% vested upon attainment of
normal retirement age or if they become totally and permanently disabled.

Normal Retirement Date: The first day of the month coinciding with or following the later of
Participant’s attainment of age 65 or completion of 5 years of plan participation. However, the
Normal Retirement Date shall not be later than age 70.

Normal Retirement Benefit: 2.50% of Average Annual Compensation multiplied by years of
Credited Service, but not less than $600.

Average Annual Compensation: Average of annual compensation for the highest consecutive 36-
month period preceding the determination date. Compensation includes wages, shift differential,
standby pay, and 50% of the value of any unused and unpaid sick leave existing at the time of
termination of employment, and accrued after April 26, 1997.

Accrued Benefit: Normal Retirement Benefit prorated on credited service.

Normal Form of Retirement Benefit: Life Annuity.

Early Retirement: The first day of the month coinciding with or following the Participant’s attainment
of age 55 and completion of at least 5 years of credited service. Then the normal retirement benefit
will be reduced by 5/9% for each of the first 60 months and 5/18% for each additional month that
payment starts before normal retirement age.

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit: If a vested participant dies prior to retirement, his or her beneficiary
will receive the actuarially determined present value of his or her accrued benefit.

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 13
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report

SECTION IV. APPENDICES

APPENDIX B. ACTUARIAL COST METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS

The following cost method and assumptions were used in valuing the benefits of all participants.

Actuarial Cost Method
Funding Interest Rate

Pre-retirement
Post-retirement

Salary Scale

Administrative Expenses

Mortality

Disability
Disablement Rate

Disabled Annuitants Mortality

Withdrawal Rates

Retirement Age

Asset Valuation Method

January 1, 2015

Entry Age Normal Cost Method

6.25%

Based on Date of Participation
DOP Before 7/1/2009: 8.00%
DOP On/After 7/1/2009: 6.50%

4.00%

None.

Based on Date of Participation
DOP Before 7/1/2009: 1984 UP
Mortality Table set back 4 years.

DOP On/After 7/1/2009: RP-2000
Table for Males set back 4 years.

None.
None.

Table T-8, The Actuary’s Pension
Handbook, Crocker-Sarason-
Straight.

The later of age 65 or the 5"
anniversary of date of participation;
or age 70, if earlier.

Market value

January 1, 2014

Entry Age Normal Cost Method

6.25%

Based on Date of Participation
DOP Before 7/1/2009: 8.00%
DOP On/After 7/1/2009: 6.50%

5.00%

None.

Based on Date of Participation
DOP Before 7/1/2009: 1984 UP
Mortality Table set back 4 years.

DOP On/After 7/1/2009: RP-2000
Table for Males set back 4 years.

None.
None.

Table T-8, The Actuary’s Pension
Handbook, Crocker-Sarason-
Straight.

The later of age 65 or the 5th
anniversary of date of participation;
or age 70, if earlier.

Market value

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan

Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman

14



Milliman Client Report SECTION IV. APPENDICES

APPENDIX C. SUMMARY OF PARTICIPANT DATA

Active Participants

NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS ANNUAL SALARIES

Age WEETS Females Total WEETS Females Total
Under 25 0 0 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
25-29 3 7 10 166,993 311,240 478,233
30-34 6 17 23 416,755 928,693 1,345,448
35-39 8 21 29 804,721 1,250,815 2,055,536
40 - 44 6 13 19 411,726 771,577 1,183,303
45 - 49 7 13 20 514,977 967,494 1,482,471
50 - 54 13 33 46 1,104,612 2,216,338 3,320,950
55-59 6 47 53 532,385 3,328,081 3,860,466
60 - 64 7 45 52 449,585 3,149,138 3,598,723
65 - 69 2 6 8 313,728 367,455 681,183
70 & Over _ 0 _ 0 _ 0 0 0 0
Total 58 202 260 $ 4,715,482 $ 13,290,831 $ 18,006,313

Other Participants

NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS ANNUAL BENEFITS
Participant Status WEETS Females Total WEETS Females Total
Part-time 0 6 6 $ 0 $ 56,064 $ 56,064
Disabled 0 1 1 0 2,741 2,741
Terminated Vested 11 47 58 217,034 462,726 679,760
Retired 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 11 54 65 $ 217,034 $ 521,531 $ 738,565
Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 15

Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION IV. APPENDICES

APPENDIX D. RECONCILIATION OF PARTICIPANT DATA

TERM

ACTIVES PART-TIME VESTEDS DISABLEDS TOTAL
As of 1/1/2014 288 8 53 1 350
New entrants 1* 1
Rehired/Return to
active 7 3) 4
Move to part-time ) 2
Non-vested
withdrawals 4) Q) (5)
Vested withdrawals (12) 12
Disability
Deaths
Annuity purchases 9) (2) (20)
Lump sum payouts 9) (6) (15)
Other (0)
As of 1/1/2015 260 6 58 1 325

* Adjustment for 1 individual who previously worked as a temp who was added to the Plan with a date of participation
prior to January 1, 2013.

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 16
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



Milliman Client Report SECTION IV. APPENDICES

APPENDIX E. GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS

Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Present Value of Future Benefits allocated to past service in
accordance with the actuarial cost method.

Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO). The present value of benefits accrued as of the valuation
date. The ABO includes both vested and nonvested benefits, but does not include the cost of
additional service or compensation increases after the valuation date.

Actuarial Cost Method. A method of allocating the present value of benefits to past and future
periods. Actuarial cost methods generally take into consideration the effect of wage inflation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses. Changes to the funded status due to deviations from the actuarial
assumptions. The deviations may result from gains and losses from investments, employee
turnover, disability, retirement, mortality, and administrative expenses.

Funded Status. A comparison of the plan assets against liabilities for future benefits. The funded
status will differ depending on which benefit liability is being compared. For example, the actuarial
accrued liability can include the value of future compensation increases, but the present value of
accumulated benefits does not. The funded status is also dependent on the interest rate used to
discount future benefits back to the present.

Funding Target. For this plan, the funding target has been set by the plan sponsor to be equal to
125% of the Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO).

Normal Cost. The value of benefits earned for one year of service. The value of benefits earned
for one year of service. The normal cost is calculated in accordance with the actuarial cost method.
The accumulation of all normal costs assigned to past service equals the Actuarial Accrued Liability.
The ABO normal cost is the increase in the ABO due to one additional year of service and one
additional year of compensation increases.

Present Value of Accumulated Benefits. This is the same as the ABO. This includes both vested
and nonvested benefits, but does not include the cost of additional service or compensation
increases after the valuation date.

Present Value of Future Benefits. The sum of all benefits expected to be paid in the future by the
plan, with the payments discounted to the present using the valuation interest rate. This includes
benefits to be earned in the future for current employees.

Present Value of Future Normal Cost. The sum of all future normal costs expected for current
employees, with the costs discounted back to the present using the valuation interest rate.

Vested Benefits. These include benefits to which a plan participant has earned a nonforfeitable
right as a result of having satisfied the applicable service requirement(s) for such benefits under the
plan, which include normal retirement benefits, early retirement benefits, and the pre-retirement
spouse’s survivor annuity.

Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District Retirement Plan 17
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2015

Milliman



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK - PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Leaves of Absence - LEAVE DONATION

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources —
Employee Handbook
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:

You may donate/transfer leave to another employee during their first 16 weeks of a
Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) Job Protected Leave (JPL).

Additional Information

Employees on extended leave, past their first 16 weeks of an NIH JPL, may no longer
receive PTO donations/transfers.

Approval Date

Board of Directors 07/15/2015




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK - PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Benefits - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human Resources - Employee
Handbook

Source: Chief Human Relations Officer Effective Date: 01/14/2015

Approval Procedure

1. Prior to enrollment, employees will need to complete the appropriate form, give it
to their supervisor for approval, then their supervisor will send the form to Senior
Management for consideration. The employee will be notified by Human
Relations whether the request is approved or denied. Pre-approval from Senior
Management is required for reimbursement.

2. If the request is approved, the employee will receive two copies of the approved
form. When the course is completed, the employee will send one copy along with
their class grade or completion certificate and a verified statement of tuition costs
or adequate receipts to Human Relations for reimbursement of up to the
maximum amount defined under Reimbursement Criteria.

3. Initial approval of a course of study does not obligate Northern Inyo Hospital to
approve future courses in that course of study. Approvals are only valid for the
specific course and quarter/semester requested. Payment of courses at a higher
institution rate does not obligate Northern Inyo Hospital to continue payment at
that higher rate.

Additional Information

1. Employees may not apply for the tuition reimbursement for courses previously
taken, or courses currently in progress. Pre-approval of Senior Management is
required.

2. Unless directed and approved by Northern Inyo Hospital, an employee’s regular
work schedule will not be altered to allow time off the job for participation in
courses. Employee’s time to participate in courses is not paid time unless
approved PTO is used.

3. Itis expected that employees who use this program will select courses locally if
available and then pursue courses at a reasonable cost so that the most education
and credits can be obtained for the reimbursement dollars provided.

4. Employees applying for any other educational assistance through any sources
such as Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) need to be aware that
there may be notification requirements and/or tax considerations. It is advisable to
consult your educational assistance program and a tax professional for such

information.
FORMS:
TUITION ASSISTANCE REQUEST FORM
Approval Date
Board of Directors 01/14/2015; 07/15/2015

Developed: 09/2014
Revised: 07/15/2015
Reviewed:




NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK - PERSONNEL POLICY

Title: Benefits - PAID SICK LEAVE

Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human Resources - Employee
Handbook

Source: Chief Human Relations Officer Effective Date: 07/01/2015

California Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014, including (i) diagnosis,
care, or treatment of any existing health condition of, or preventive care for, the
employee or an employee’s family member (child-regardless of age, parent (including
step-parent and parent-in-law), spouse, registered domestic partner, grandparent,
grandchild or sibling); (ii) for an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, for the purposes set forth in Labor Code Section 230.1 (medical
attention, services from a domestic violence shelter, psychological counseling, safety
planning).

The hospital requires employees to use paid sick leave under this policy in minimum
increments of two hours.

Employees requesting time off under this policy should provide as much advanced notice
to their direct manager as practicable, and employees who take more than three days of
leave will be required to provide appropriate documentation to their direct manager in
support of the leave taken.

Unused sick leave shall not be paid upon‘termination, resignation, retirement, or other
separation of employment. However, employees who are re-employed with the company
within a year of separation will have their accrued unused bank of time off under this
policy made available to them.

Leave under this policy may run concurrently with leave taken under other applicable
policies as well as under local, state or federal law, including leave taken pursuant to the
California Family Rights Act (CFRA) or the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

For more information regarding leave under this policy, contact Human Relations.

OTHER REFERENCES:
e State of California Healthy \Workplaces/Healthy Families Act of 2014

Approval Date

Board of Directors

Responsibility for review and maintenance: CHRO
Developed: 06/25/2015

Revised:

Reviewed:




